

NOTE: The rule amendments proposed in this Plan Change have no legal effect until the Council's decision approving the Change is publicly notified (s 86B).

#### SHORT-TERM ACCOMMODATION

##### Explanation

The purpose of Plan Change 4 is to:

- a. include provisions that more specifically and appropriately respond to demand for visitor accommodation in residential units. This affects zones that generally enable residential activities at present (including residential, rural and commercial zones and the Papakāinga/Kāinga Nohoanga Zone). The changes apply to both hosted accommodation ("bed and breakfasts" and "farmstays") and unhosted accommodation ("guest accommodation") in the current Plan;
- b. clarify the extent to which different types of visitor accommodation activities are subject to objectives and policies to primarily locate in commercial centres;
- c. better differentiate between residential and visitor accommodation activities including clarifying the activity status of activities like serviced apartments and other forms of short-term accommodation.

This Plan Change does not address the standards for visitor accommodation activities in the Specific Purpose (Golf Resort) Zone.

In parallel with this Plan Change, the Council is implementing the National Planning Standards definition of "visitor accommodation". This will replace the current definitions for "guest accommodation", "bed and breakfast" and "farmstay" in the District Plan. Consequential amendments from this change are noted in the text below for reference only. They are not proposed to have legal effect until the Plan Change becomes operative.

In summary, the Plan Change:

1. combines the definitions for "guest accommodation", "farm stay" and "bed and breakfast" into one definition ("visitor accommodation", relying on the National Planning Standards definition) and uses activity specific standards in the rules to differentiate between these activities;
2. amends the definitions of "residential activity" and "residential unit" to better differentiate these activities from visitor accommodation and to clarify the status of other types of short-term accommodation which may not be captured as "living accommodation" in the current definition including serviced apartments, house-sitting and home-exchanges.
3. includes amendments resulting from the broader scope of the "visitor accommodation" definition (which includes farm stays and bed and breakfasts whereas "guest accommodation" specifically excluded them). Replacing the term means that definitions like "sensitive activities" that rely on the "guest accommodation" definition previously did not apply to farm stays and bed and breakfasts but now do, as do some of the transport standards.

4. makes amendments resulting from the removal of the “guest accommodation” definition, specifying which ancillary activities (like conference or fitness facilities) were included while the new “visitor accommodation” definition does not. Some changes have been made to the rules in zones or areas like the Accommodation and Community Facility Overlay to continue to provide for ancillary activities where these are not already permitted in the zone or overlay. In the ACF Overlay, limits on the scale of ancillary activities have been introduced consistent with the limits in the Residential Visitor Accommodation Zone.
5. introduces a new objective and several new policies in the residential chapter which are specific to visitor accommodation. These differentiate between small-scale and/or hosted visitor accommodation activities that retain a residential character and are appropriate to locate in residential zones and larger scale activities with a commercial character that are primarily directed to commercial centres.
6. amends a policy in the commercial chapter to clarify whether or not the intention is to primarily direct visitor accommodation within the Four Avenues into the Entertainment and Hospitality Precincts.
7. introduces new standards for hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit (formerly “bed and breakfasts”) including limits on late night arrivals and departures and sizes of functions.
8. changes the activity status for unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit in most residential zones from Discretionary to Controlled for 1-60 nights per year, Discretionary for 61-180 nights per year and Non-Complying for more than 180 nights per year.
9. changes the activity status for unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit in most rural zones from Discretionary to Permitted for 1-180 nights per year (subject to requirements to keep records and provide information to the Council) and Discretionary for more than 180 nights per year.
10. supports the ongoing use of heritage items by enabling them to be used for visitor accommodation in residential zones for a larger number of guests and a greater number of nights per year than residential units. A Controlled activity status resource consent is required if a manager or supervisor does not live on site so that amenity impacts on neighbours can be managed.
11. differentiates between several types of activities that currently sit under the “farm stay” definitions and applies different standards to them (e.g visitor accommodation accessory to farming as opposed to visitor accommodation accessory to a conservation activity or walking or cycling track.)

### *Reasons for the Plan Change*

Firstly, there has been a significant increase in offerings of visitor accommodation in residential dwellings (home-share accommodation) since the District Plan provisions were last reviewed. This has given rise to concerns about the effects of the activity on neighbours and the surrounding area. ChristchurchNZ estimates that between June 2016 and June 2019 the percentage of accommodation guest nights taken up by Airbnb and HomeAway/Bookabach guests rose from less than one per cent to approximately 27 per cent. In the twelve months up to September 2019, on those two websites alone, there were approximately 4,230 listings for home-share accommodation in the Christchurch district of which 2,135 (50 per cent) were for whole residential units<sup>1</sup>.

These numbers have decreased as a result of the Covid-19 international travel restrictions but are likely to return to a comparable level once international travel resumes.

<sup>1</sup> Information on the number of listings comes from AirDNA, an independent market research firm which compiles web scraped data on Airbnb and HomeAway/Bookabach, the two largest operators in Christchurch District. There are a number of other platforms where home-share accommodation can be listed, so the AirDNA statistics will generally be conservative estimates of the size of the market rather than exact figures. This data does not distinguish between “whole unit” listings where the owner may live in a different residential unit on the same site.

Secondly, there have been issues identified with the objectives, policies and rules that apply to home-share accommodation through decisions on resource consents by Council and the Environment Court.

The District Plan distinguishes between “bed and breakfast” activities where a permanent resident is required to be present for the stay and “guest accommodation” activities, which do not have that requirement.

The current District Plan rules generally require a Discretionary resource consent for “guest accommodation” activities in residential and rural zones (with some exceptions) . This requirement applies from the first day that the unit is let.

Data collected from AirDNA suggests there were an estimated 1,600 listings in residential zones in 2019 that required a resource consent although it is difficult to determine from the listings which sites may still have a permanent resident in another unit on the site. There are likely to be more listings in rural zones that are not part of a farm stay or rural tourism activity and also require a resource consent.

Despite this, only a handful of resource consent applications have been received.

Decisions on two of those applications were to decline the application despite the environmental effects being found to be less than minor. The applications were not considered to be consistent with the objective and policy framework for non-residential activities which seeks to “restrict the establishment of other non-residential activities, especially those of a commercial or industrial nature, unless the activity has a strategic or operational need to locate within a residential zone, and the effects of such activities on the character and amenity of residential zones are insignificant.”

The Commissioners on those two decisions noted that they were “troubled” by the outcome but felt that the existing policy framework for non-residential activities did not give scope to approve the applications . One of those decisions was recently successfully reversed by the Environment Court which noted that “the plan provisions may not adequately respond to the demand for this activity.”

Thirdly, there is a lack of evidence to justify the current policy framework and rules in the District Plan that necessitates a review. Through research that Council has undertaken, there has not been found to be significant negative impacts of home-share accommodation in a Christchurch context on housing supply and affordability, rural character and amenity nor the regeneration of the Central City that would otherwise provide a basis for a restrictive approach to small-scale, part-time listings by permanent residents of the unit or rural holiday homes listed when not in use by the owner(s).

#### More information

A further explanation of these changes is set out in the evaluation report prepared in accordance with section 32 of the Resource Management Act 1991 (RMA) (“the s32 report”) that accompanies this Plan Change. The s32 report should be read in parallel with this Plan Change.

Date Publicly Notified: 24 September 2020

Date Operative: DD Month YYYY

Council Decision Notified: DD Month YYYY

File No: PL/DP/4

Plan Details: Chapters 2, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 13, 14, 15, 16, and 17

TRIM No: FOLDER19/390

Planning Map Legends

## DISTRICT PLAN AMENDMENTS

Note: For the purposes of this plan change, any unchanged text is shown as normal text, any text proposed to be added by the plan change as notified is shown as **bold underlined** and text to be deleted as **~~bold strikethrough~~**.

Text in **green** font identifies existing terms defined in Chapter 2 - Definitions. Where the newly added text contains a defined term, the term is shown as **bold underlined text in green**. Text in **blue** font indicates links to other provisions in the District Plan and/or external documents. These will have pop-ups and links, respectively, in the on-line Christchurch District Plan.

Removal of the current reliance in the text on a defined term but retention of the plain meaning of the term is shown in **yellow highlighting over black text**.

Changes that cannot be submitted on because they are implementing a National Planning Standard are **bold and grey shaded**.

Amend the District Plan as follows:

## Chapter 2 Definitions List

B  
(...)

### ~~Bed and breakfast~~

~~means the use of part of a residential unit for the provision of transient residential accommodation, at a tariff.~~

~~It excludes the sale of alcohol.~~

F  
(...)

### ~~Farm stay~~

~~means transient accommodation offered at a tariff that is accessory to farming, conservation activity or rural tourism activity and in association with a residential unit on the site."~~

G  
(...)

### ~~Guest accommodation~~

~~means the use of land and/or buildings for transient residential accommodation offered at a tariff, which may involve the sale of alcohol and/or food to in-house guests, and the sale of food, with or without alcohol, to the public. It may include the following ancillary activities:~~

~~a. offices;~~

~~b. meeting and conference facilities;~~

~~c. fitness facilities; and~~

~~d. the provision of goods and services primarily for the convenience of guests.~~

~~Guest accommodation includes hotels, resorts, motels, motor and tourist lodges, backpackers, hostels and camping grounds. Guest accommodation excludes bed and breakfasts and farm stays.~~

H

### Habitable building

means any building occupied by persons for residential activity or [guest visitor accommodation](#).

### Habitable space

means all the spaces of a residential unit or [guest visitor accommodation](#) unit except any bathroom, laundry, toilet, pantry, walk-in wardrobe, corridor, hallway, lobby or clothes drying room (but including any portion of a garage used as a sleep-out).

### Home occupation

means any occupation, including a profession but excluding [visitor accommodation](#), undertaken within a [residential unit](#) by a person who resides permanently within that [residential unit](#).

### Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit

means a [residential unit](#) that is also used for [visitor accommodation](#) where:

a. at least one permanent resident of that [residential unit](#) is in residence in the [residential unit](#) for the duration of the stay;

b. individual bookings by visitors are for less than 28 days each; and

c. any [family flat](#) is not used for [visitor accommodation](#).

Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit includes a bed and breakfast but excludes hotels, resorts, motels, motor and tourist lodges, backpackers, hostels, farmstays and camping grounds.

#### Hotel

means any building and associated land where **guest visitor accommodation** is provided and which is the subject of an alcohol licence. It may include restaurants, bars, bottle stores, conference and other ancillary facilities as part of an integrated complex.

#### N

(...)

#### Net floor area

unless otherwise specified, means the sum of the floor areas, each measured to the inside of the exterior walls of the **building** or **buildings**. It includes the net floor area of any **accessory building**, but excludes any floor area used for:

- a. lift wells, including the assembly area immediately outside the lift doors for a maximum depth of 2 metres;
- b. tank rooms, boiler and heating rooms, machine rooms and bank vaults;
- c. those parts of any basement not used for **residential activities**, **commercial activities** or **industrial activities**;
- d. **parking areas** and/or **loading areas**, including basement parking which extends no more than 1 metre above **ground level**;
- e. 50% of any pedestrian arcade, or ground floor foyer, which is available for public thoroughfare;
- f. covered **access ways**;
- g. roof terraces that are for residential or staff use only, are uncovered and open (apart from a balustrade) to the outside air on at least three sides; and
- h. decks that are for residential or staff use only, are uncovered and open (apart from a balustrade) to the outside air on at least three sides and which do not extend more than 800 millimetres in **height** above **ground level** and cover less than 15% of the **net site area**.

It excludes the following for **commercial activities** and **guest visitor accommodation** only:

- i. all stairwells (including landing areas);
- j. toilets and bathrooms, provided that in the case of any **guest visitor accommodation** the maximum area permitted to be excluded for each unit shall be 3m<sup>2</sup>; and
- k. that part of a **balcony** that is within 2 metres from an exterior wall of a **building**, provided that the **balcony** is open to the outside air (apart from a balustrade) on at least one side.

It excludes the following for **residential activities** only:

- l. shared stairwells;
- m. **garages** and carports; and
- n. all **balconies**.

#### Noise-sensitive activities

in relation to [Sub-chapter 13.10 Specific Purpose \(Ruapuna Motorsport\) Zone](#), means:

- a. residential activities, other than those existing in conjunction with rural activities that comply with the rules in the relevant District Plan as at 23 August 2008;
- b. education activities including preschools, but excluding flight training, trade training or other industry-related training facilities;
- c. guest visitor accommodation, except that which is designed, constructed and operated to a standard that mitigates the effects of noise on occupants; and
- d. health care facilities and any elderly person's housing unit.

R

(...)

Residential activity

means the use of land and/or buildings for the purpose of living accommodation. It includes:

- a. a residential unit, boarding house, student hostel or a family flat (including accessory buildings);
- b. emergency and refuge accommodation;
- c. use of a residential unit as a holiday home where a payment in money, goods or services is not exchanged;
- d. house-sitting and direct home exchanges where a tariff is not charged;
- e. rented accommodation and serviced apartments not covered by clause (g) and where individual bookings are for a minimum of 28 consecutive days (except in the Specific Purpose (Golf Resort) Zone); and
- ef. sheltered housing; but

excludes:

- eg. guest visitor accommodation including hotels, resorts, motels, motor and tourist lodges, backpackers, hostels, farmstays, camping grounds, hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit and unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit;
- eh. the use of land and/or buildings for custodial and/or supervised living accommodation where the residents are detained on the site; and
- fi. accommodation associated with a fire station.

Residential unit

means a self-contained building or unit (or group of buildings, including accessory buildings) used for:

- i. a residential activity by one or more persons who form a single household; or
- ii. visitor accommodation accessory to a residential activity.

For the purposes of this definition:

- a. a building used for emergency or refuge accommodation shall be deemed to be used by a single household;
- b. where there is more than one kitchen on a site (other than a kitchen within a family flat ~~or a kitchenette provided as part of a bed and breakfast or farm stay~~) there shall be deemed to be more than one residential unit;
- c. a residential unit may include no more than one family flat as part of that residential unit;
- d. ~~a residential unit may be used as a holiday home provided it does not involve the sale of alcohol, food or other goods; and~~
- e. ~~a residential unit may be used as a bed and breakfast or farm stay.~~
- d. a residential unit may be used for visitor accommodation that is accessory to a residential activity.

S

(...)

Sensitive activities



means:

- a. residential activities, unless specified below;
- b. care facilities;
- c. education activities and preschools, unless specified below;
- d. guest visitor accommodation, unless specified below;
- e. health care facilities which include accommodation for overnight care;
- f. hospitals; and
- g. custodial and/or supervised living accommodation where the residents are detained on the site;  
but excludes in relation to airport noise:
- h. any residential activities, in conjunction with rural activities that comply with the rules in the relevant district plans as at 23 August 2008;
- i. flight training or other trade and industry training activities located on land zoned or legally used for commercial activities or industrial activities, including the Specific Purpose (Airport) Zone; and
- j. guest visitor accommodation (except hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit or unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit) which is designed, constructed and operated to a standard to mitigate the effects of aircraft noise on occupants.

T

Tavern

means any land or building which is the subject of an alcohol licence authorising the sale of alcohol to, and consumption of it by, the general public on the premises. It may include a bottle store, restaurant and staff accommodation (but not guest visitor accommodation).

U

Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit

means a residential unit that is also used for visitor accommodation where:

- a. no permanent resident of that residential unit is in residence in the same residential unit for the duration of the stay;
- b. individual bookings by visitors are for less than 28 days each; and
- c. any family flat is not used for visitor accommodation.

Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit excludes hotels, resorts, motels, motor and tourist lodges, backpackers, hostels, farmstays and camping grounds.

V

(...)

Visitor accommodation

means land and/or buildings used for accommodating visitors, subject to a tariff being paid, and includes any ancillary activities.

## Chapter 5 Natural Hazards

### 5.4.1.3 Exemptions for daylight recession planes in the Flood Management Area

(...)

- a. For the purposes of a. and b. above, the applicable daylight recession plane in residential zones are:
  - i. (...)
  - viii. Rule [14.11.2.6](#) Daylight recession planes – Residential ~~Guest~~ Visitor Accommodation Zone;

## Chapter 6 General Rules and Procedures

### 6.1 Noise

#### 6.1.6 Activity Specific Noise Rules

##### 6.1.6.1 Activity status tables

###### 6.1.6.1.4 Discretionary activities

(...)

Activity	
(...)	
D3	In the <a href="#">Central City</a> , any <a href="#">residential activity</a> or <a href="#">guest visitor accommodation</a> located within a Category 1 Precinct as shown on the Central City Entertainment and Hospitality Precinct Overlay planning map.

#### 6.1.7 Rules - Activities near infrastructure

##### 6.1.7.1 Activity status tables

###### 6.1.7.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

Activity	Activity specific standards
P2	<p>In any rural zone other than the Rural Quarry Zone, any <del>new noise sensitive activity</del> and <del>any addition to an existing noise</del> <u>addition of a whole room to an existing building or any part of a new building where these are intended for a sensitive activity</u> proposed between the Ruapuna Inner and Outer Noise Boundary relating to Ruapuna Motorsport Park as shown on the relevant Planning Maps.</p>
	<p>a. The activities shall be designed and constructed to ensure compliance with the indoor design sound levels in <a href="#">Rule 6.1.7.2.1</a>.</p> <p>Advice note:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>These rules are intended to mitigate the effects of motorsport noise within internal <a href="#">building</a> spaces only. Noise from motor sport activities will also be audible outside of <a href="#">buildings</a> to a varying degree. When constructing new dwellings, residents are encouraged to consider orientating <a href="#">outdoor living spaces</a> away from the Motorsport Park. Where this is not practical, the use of solid continuous walls or fencing encircling the outdoor space, can be used to help mitigate noise.</li> </ol>

###### 6.1.7.1.5 Non-complying activities

(...)

Activity	
NC5	In any rural zone, any <u>addition of a whole room to an existing building or any part of a new building where these are intended for a <del>new noise sensitive activity</del></u> located within the Ruapuna Inner Noise Boundary surrounding Ruapuna Motorsport Park as shown on the relevant Planning Maps.
NC6	In any rural zone, other than the Rural Quarry Zone, any <u>addition of a whole room to an existing building or any part of a new building where these are intended for a <del>new noise</del></u>

Activity
<del>sensitive activity</del> or any addition to an existing noise sensitive activity proposed between the Ruapuna Inner and Outer Noise Boundary relating to Ruapuna Motorsport Park, as shown on the relevant Planning Maps, that does not comply with the activity specific standard of <a href="#">Rule 6.1.7.1.1 P2</a> .

#### 6.1.7.2.2 Activities near Christchurch Airport

- a. The following activity standards apply to new [buildings](#) and additions to existing [buildings](#) located within the 55 dB Ldn air noise contour or the 55 dB Ldn engine testing contour shown on the planning maps:
- i. Any new [buildings](#) and/or additions to existing [buildings](#) shall be insulated from aircraft noise and designed to comply with the following indoor design sound levels:
- A. [Residential units, hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit and unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit](#):
- I. Sleeping areas – 65 dB LAE/40 dB Ldn
  - II. Other habitable areas – 75 dB LAE /50 dB Ldn
- B. [Guest Visitor accommodation](#), resort hotels, [hospitals](#) and [health care facilities](#):
- I. Relaxing or sleeping - 65 dB LAE /40 dB Ldn
  - II. Conference meeting rooms - 65 dB LAE / 40 dB Ldn
  - III. Service activities – 75 dB LAE /60 dB Ldn

### 6.3 Outdoor Lighting

#### 6.3.6 Rules – Light Spill Standards by Zone (...)

Table 6.3.6.1 – Light Spill Standards by Zone

Zone or scheduled activity	Permitted lux spill (horizontal and vertical)
i. Open Space Coastal Zone	4.0
ii. Commercial Central City Business Zone	20.0
iii. Commercial zones, all other	10.0
iv. Residential <a href="#">Guest Visitor Accommodation Zone</a>	5.0
(...)	

### 6.4 Temporary earthquake recovery activities

#### 6.4.3.1 How to interpret and apply the rules and duration of rules (...)

Group	Zone	The rules applying to this zone can be found in:
Group 2	Open Space (all zones except Open Space Coastal) Commercial Central City Business Commercial Central City Mixed Use Commercial Central City (South Frame) Mixed use Commercial Local within the Central City Residential Central City Papakāinga/Kāinga Nohoanga	<a href="#">Section 6.4.3.3</a>

	Residential Bach Residential <del>Guest Visitor</del> Accommodation Residential Hills Residential Large Lot Residential New Neighbourhood Residential Small Settlement Rural (all zones) Specific Purpose (all zones)	
--	--	--

#### 6.4.3.2 Rules – Displaced activities and storage facilities in Group 1 Zones

##### 6.4.3.2.1 Activity status tables

##### 6.4.3.2.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

P3	<u>Retail activity, office, <del>guest visitor</del> accommodation, food and beverage outlets, entertainment activities, education activity, health care facilities, preschools, and places of assembly</u> until the 30 April 2018, located in one of the following zones - <u>Commercial Core</u> (except New Brighton); <u>Commercial Local</u> outside of the <u>Central City</u> ; ; <u>Commercial Banks Peninsula</u> ; <u>Commercial Retail Park</u> ; <u>Industrial General</u> .	[...]
----	---	-------

#### 6.4.3.3 Rules – Displaced activities, storage facilities and construction depots in Group 2 Zones

##### 6.4.3.3.1 Activity status tables

##### 6.4.3.3.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

P3	<u>Retail activity, office, <del>guest visitor</del> accommodation, food and beverage outlets, entertainment activities, education activity, health care facilities, preschools, and places of assembly</u> until the 30 April 2018, located in a Commercial Central City Business, Commercial Central City Mixed Use, Commercial Central City (South Frame) Mixed Use, Commercial Local (within the <u>Central City</u> ), Specific Purpose (Lyttelton	[...]
----	---	-------

	Port) or Specific Purpose (Airport) Zone.	
--	---	--

#### 6.4.5.2 Activity Status Tables

##### 6.4.5.2.1 Permitted activities

(...)

Activity	Activity specific standards
P1	Workers' temporary accommodation until 31 December 2022 provided through use or conversion of a permanent: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. residential unit;</li> <li>b. <del>guest visitor</del> accommodation unit or facility;</li> <li>c. boarding or residential accommodation ancillary to an education activity;</li> <li>d. elderly persons' housing, care facility and/or retirement village</li> </ul>

##### 6.4.5.2.2 Controlled activities

(...)

Activity	The Council's control shall be limited to the following Matters:
C1	Erection and use of temporary or relocatable buildings, including multi-unit residential complexes, for workers' temporary accommodation until 31 December 2022 located in: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. a Residential Central City, Residential Suburban Density Transition or Residential Medium Density Zone;</li> <li>b. a Commercial Zone outside of the Central City;</li> <li>c. a Residential <del>Guest Visitor</del> Accommodation Zone outside of the Central City</li> </ul> where: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>d. no more than 20 people are accommodated on any one site;</li> <li>e. temporary buildings comply with all built form standards in the relevant zone with respect to setbacks,</li> </ul>

	<p>recession planes and maximum <a href="#">building height</a>;</p> <p>f. on-site car parking is provided at a minimum of one <a href="#">parking space</a> per four beds;</p> <p>g. there is no alteration or destruction of any <a href="#">building</a> or tree scheduled or listed in the <a href="#">District Plan</a>;</p> <p>h. a Decommissioning Strategy has been submitted to the <a href="#">Council</a>. This shall include:</p> <p>i. a statement of how all workers' temporary accommodation <a href="#">buildings</a> will be removed and the <a href="#">site</a> reinstated for its anticipated permanent use;</p> <p>ii. timing and any phasing;</p> <p>iii. remediation works, including any clearance of services, <a href="#">landscaping</a> or hard surfacing;</p> <p>iv. the use of any <a href="#">buildings</a> or services to remain on <a href="#">site</a> in accordance with the <a href="#">District Plan</a>.</p> <p>i. On-site management shall be provided for the workers' temporary accommodation. This shall include:</p> <p>i. a live-in manager on <a href="#">site</a>, or a nominated occupant where no more than 4 people are accommodated;</p> <p>ii. security services; and</p> <p>iii. on-site rules and policies.</p> <p>j. a Site Design Statement is provided outlining how the project has been designed and will operate in accordance with the relevant guidelines for <a href="#">site</a> and <a href="#">building</a> design in <a href="#">Appendix 6.2 Temporary Accommodation for Workers Guidelines</a>.</p> <p>Any application arising from this rule shall not be publicly or limited notified.</p>	
--	--	--

6.4.5.2.3 Restricted Discretionary Activities  
(...)

Activity		The <a href="#">Council</a> 's discretion shall be limited to the following Matters:
RD1	Workers' temporary accommodation until 31 December 2022 provided through use or conversion of a permanent:	[...]

	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <a href="#">residential unit</a>;</li> <li>b. <a href="#">guest visitor accommodation</a> unit or facility;</li> <li>c. boarding or residential accommodation <a href="#">ancillary</a> to an <a href="#">education activity</a>;</li> <li>d. elderly persons' housing, <a href="#">care facility</a> and/or <a href="#">retirement village</a>;</li> </ul> <p>that does not comply with one or more of the activity specific standards in P1</p> <p>Any application will not require written approvals and shall not be limited or publicly notified.</p>	
--	--	--

## 6.5 Scheduled Activities

### 6.5.4.2.5 Sunlight and outlook at boundaries with residential zones

- a. Scheduled activities on [sites adjoining](#) the zones specified below shall not include [buildings](#) projecting above the following recession planes:

	Scheduled activity	Zone(s)	Standard
i	All, where the <a href="#">site</a> of the activity <a href="#">adjoins</a> the zones specified	All residential zones (including Residential <del>Guest Visitor</del> Accommodation), all open space zones, and Specific Purpose (Schools), Specific Purpose (Tertiary Education) and Specific Purpose (Cemetery) Zones in the Central City	a. New <a href="#">buildings</a> or extensions shall comply with the recession plane standards for the relevant zone <a href="#">adjoining</a> the <a href="#">site</a> of the scheduled activity.

## 6.6 Water Body Setbacks

### 6.6.3 How to interpret and apply the rules

- a. Classified [water bodies](#) are identified on the Planning Maps and also in [Appendix 6.11.5.4](#). The characteristics of each classification of [water body](#) are described in [Appendix 6.11.5.1](#).
- b. The rules that apply within the [water body setbacks](#) are contained in the following provisions:

	Area	Zones	Provisions
i.	City and settlement area	All commercial; All industrial; All residential (except as below), including Residential <del>Guest Visitor</del> Accommodation; Papakāinga/Kāinga Nohoanga; All specific purpose; Open Space Metropolitan Facilities; Open Space Community Parks; Open Space Avon River Precinct/Te Papa Otakaro;	Activity status tables (including activity specific standards) in <a href="#">Rule 6.6.4</a>



Area	Zones	Provisions
	Open Space Water and Margins (where adjacent to the above zones); Transport (where adjacent to the above zones)	

## 6.8 Signs

### 6.8.4 Rules

#### 6.8.4.1 Activity status tables

##### 6.8.4.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

P7	Business and <a href="#">building</a> identification <a href="#">signs</a> made of three dimensional letters and/or symbols in: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. residential zones (other than the Residential <del>Guest</del> <a href="#">Visitor</a> Accommodation Zone or where located within a Character Area Overlay);</li> <li>b. the Papakāinga/Kāinga Nohoanga Zone;</li> <li>c. all open space and rural zones;</li> <li>d. the Specific Purpose (School) Zone; and</li> <li>e. the Specific Purpose (Ōtākaro Avon River Corridor) Zone.</li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. The maximum symbol/lettering height shall be 200mm.</li> <li>b. No more than 30 letters and/or symbols shall be displayed on each <a href="#">building</a> frontage.</li> <li>c. Letters and/or symbols shall be applied with no visible mounting structure.</li> <li>d. The background shall not be differentiated from the fabric and colour of the rest of the façade.</li> <li>e. <a href="#">Signs</a> shall not extend above façade <a href="#">height</a>.</li> </ul> <p>Advice note:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Where any one or more of the activity specific standards a. - e. above are not met, <a href="#">Rule 6.8.4.1.1 P1</a> shall apply.</li> </ol>
P8	Business and <a href="#">building</a> identification <a href="#">signs</a> made of three dimensional letters and/or symbols in: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. the Residential <del>Guest</del> <a href="#">Visitor</a> Accommodation Zone,</li> </ul> (...)	(...)

#### 6.8.4.2.4 Signs attached to buildings

- a. For [signage](#) on [heritage items](#) and in [heritage settings](#), the rules in [Chapter 9](#) also apply.
- b. The maximum area and [height](#) of [signs](#) shall be as follows:

Zone or scheduled activity	Maximum <a href="#">total area of signs</a> per <a href="#">building</a>	Maximum <a href="#">height</a> above <a href="#">ground level</a> at top of <a href="#">sign</a>
All residential zones (other than Residential <del>Guest</del> <a href="#">Visitor</a> Accommodation Zone)	0.5m <sup>2</sup> , or as specified in an activity status table for permitted non-residential	4 metres or façade <a href="#">height</a> , whichever is lower

Zone or scheduled activity	Maximum <u>total area of signs</u> per <u>building</u>	Maximum <u>height</u> above <u>ground level</u> at top of <u>sign</u>
	activities in <a href="#">Chapter 14 Residential Zones</a> .	
Open Space Community Parks Zone	2m <sup>2</sup>	
Open Space Water and Margins Zone and Open Space Avon River Precinct/Te Papa Ōtākaro Zone		
Open Space Natural Zone		
Rural Banks Peninsula Zone		
Specific Purpose (Ōtākaro Avon River Corridor) Zone		
Open Space Metropolitan Facilities Zone	3m <sup>2</sup>	
Open Space McLeans Island Zone		
All rural zones (other than Rural Banks Peninsula Zone)	4m <sup>2</sup>	
All specific purpose zones not listed elsewhere in this table		
Commercial Banks Peninsula Zone (except Lyttelton)	Length along <u>primary building frontage</u> (m) x 0.2m.	6 metres or façade <u>height</u> , whichever is lower
Residential <del>Guest Visitor</del> Accommodation Zone		9 metres or façade <u>height</u> , whichever is lower

#### 6.8.4.2.6 Free-standing signs

- a. Any free-standing sign located within a heritage setting identified in [Sub-chapter 9.3](#) is subject to [Rule 9.3.4.1 P6](#) and [Rule 9.3.4.3 RD7](#) and the below table does not apply.
- b. The maximum number, area, width and height of free-standing signs shall be as follows:

Zone or scheduled activity	Number of <u>signs</u> per <u>site</u>	Maximum <u>total area of signs</u>	Maximum <u>height</u> above <u>ground level</u> at top of <u>sign</u>
All residential zones (other than Residential <del>Guest Visitor</del> Accommodation Zone)	1	0.2m <sup>2</sup> , or as specified in an activity status table for permitted non-residential activities in Chapter 14 Residential Zones.	4 metres
Open Space Community Parks Zone	1 for each formed <u>vehicle access</u> (refer to <a href="#">Rule 6.8.4.2.6 c.</a> and d. below) and 1 for each formed	1m <sup>2</sup> per <u>sign</u>	
Open Space Water and Margins Zone and Open Space Avon River Precinct/Te Papa Ōtākaro Zone			

Zone or scheduled activity	Number of <a href="#">signs</a> per <a href="#">site</a>	Maximum <a href="#">total area of signs</a>	Maximum <a href="#">height</a> above <a href="#">ground level</a> at top of <a href="#">sign</a>
Open Space Natural Zone (except Orton Bradley Park)	pedestrian entrance (refer to <a href="#">Rule 6.8.4.2.6</a> d. below).		
Open Space Metropolitan Facilities Zone			
Open Space McLeans Island Zone			
All rural zones			
Specific Purpose (Ōtākaro Avon River Corridor) Zone, except within an Edge Housing Area Overlay or Trial Housing Area Overlay, as shown on the Development Plan in Appendix <a href="#">13.4.6.1</a> .			

Zone or scheduled activity	Number of signs per vehicle or pedestrian entrance	Relating to Pedestrian Entrances			Relating to Vehicle Entrances		
		Maximum width	Maximum total area of a <a href="#">sign</a>	Maximum <a href="#">height</a> above <a href="#">ground level</a> at top of <a href="#">sign</a>	Maximum width	Maximum total area of a <a href="#">sign</a>	Maximum <a href="#">height</a> above <a href="#">ground level</a> at top of <a href="#">sign</a>
Commercial Banks Peninsula Zone	1 for each formed <a href="#">vehicle access</a> (refer to <a href="#">Rule 6.8.4.2.6</a> c. and d. below) and 1 for each		1m <sup>2</sup>	2 metres	2 metres	2m <sup>2</sup>	4 metres
Residential <del>Guest</del> Visitor Accommodation Zone							
Commercial Local Zone	formed pedestrian entrance (refer to <a href="#">Rule 6.8.4.2.6</a> d. below), (other than <a href="#">billboards</a> permitted under <a href="#">Rule 6.8.4.1.1</a> P15)	1 metre	2m <sup>2</sup>	2 metres	2 metres	9m <sup>2</sup>	6 metres
Commercial Office Zone							
Commercial Central City Business Zone							
All scheduled activities ( <a href="#">Rule 6.5</a> ), other than <a href="#">service stations</a>							

## 6.9 Late Night Licensed Premises

### 6.9.4.1.3 Restricted discretionary activities

(...)

	Activity	The <a href="#">Council's</a> discretion shall be limited to the following matters:
RD1	<p>Sale and/or supply of alcohol between the hours of 11pm and 7am from any <a href="#">site</a> located within 75m of a residential zone, an Edge Housing Area Overlay or Trial Housing Area Overlay within the Specific Purpose (Ōtākaro Avon River Corridor) Zone as shown on the Development Plan in Appendix <a href="#">13.14.6.1</a> or a site identified in Appendix <a href="#">13.14.6.2</a> that is in private ownership and has a Residential alternative Zone, other than the sale and/or supply of alcohol:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. to any person residing on the premises;</li> <li>b. for consumption off the premises;</li> <li>c. authorised by a special licence;</li> <li>d. accompanying a meal served by a <a href="#">guest visitor accommodation</a> premises; and</li> <li>e. in a Category 2 Entertainment and Hospitality Precinct (as identified on the <a href="#">Central City Entertainment and Hospitality Precinct Overlay Planning Map</a>) where the restricted hours are 11pm to 7am along Victoria Street and 1am to 7am for other Category 2 precincts.</li> </ul>	<p>a. Amenity – <a href="#">Rule 6.9.5.1</a></p>

Chapter 7 Transport

7.4.3 7.4.3 Standards — Transport (All zones outside the Specific Purpose (Lyttelton Port) Zone)

7.4.3.1 Minimum and maximum number and dimensions of car parking spaces required

a. Outside of the Central City:

	Applicable to:	Standard	The <u>Council</u> 's discretion shall be limited to the following matters:
iii.	<p>Any activity:</p> <p>A. where standard car <u>parking spaces</u> are provided (except <u>a. residential developments with less than 3 residential units, or</u> <u>b. hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit for up to six guests or</u> <u>c. unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit for up to 60 days per year in a residential zone, or</u> <u>d. visitor accommodation for up to ten guests in a rural zone</u>); or</p> <p>B. containing <u>buildings</u> with a <u>GFA</u> of more than 2,500m<sup>2</sup>.</p>	<p>At least the minimum number of <u>mobility parking spaces</u> in accordance with Table 7.5.1.2 in <u>Appendix 7.5.1</u> shall be provided on the same <u>site</u> as the activity.</p>	<p>Rule <u>7.4.4.3</u> - Mobility parking spaces.</p>
(...)			

b. Within the Central City:

	Applicable to	Standard	The Council's discretion shall be limited to the following matters:
iii.	Any activity (other than in respect of: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. residential activities, or</li> <li>b. hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit for up to six guests; or</li> <li>c. unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit for up to 60 days per year): <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>A. where car parking spaces are provided, or</li> <li>B. containing buildings with a GFA of more than 2,500m<sup>2</sup>.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	The minimum number of mobility parking spaces in accordance with Appendix 7.5.1 shall be provided on the same site as the activity.	Rule 7.4.4.3 – Mobility parking spaces

Advice note:

1. For the avoidance of doubt there is no on-site carparking required within the Central City. There is also no requirement to provide mobility parking spaces for residential activities or for the visitor accommodation activities specified in 7.4.3.1 (b)(iii) above within the Central City.

#### 7.4.3.5 Gradient of parking areas and loading areas

Applicable to:		Standard	The Council's discretion shall be limited to the following matters:
a. All non-residential activities with vehicle access (except hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit for up to six guests; or unhosted visitor accommodation	i. Gradient of surfaces at 90 degrees to the angle of parking (i.e. parking stall width).	Gradient shall be ≤ 1:16 (6.26%).	Rule 7.4.4.7 - Gradient of parking areas and loading areas
	ii. Gradient of surfaces parallel to the angle of parking (i.e. parking stall length).	Gradient shall be ≤ 1:20 (5%).	
	iii. Gradient of mobility parking spaces.	Gradient shall be ≤ 1:50 (2%).	

<p><u>in a residential unit for up to 60 days per year in a residential zone; or visitor accommodation for up to ten guests in a rural zone).</u></p>			
---	--	--	--

#### 7.4.3.6 Design of parking areas and loading areas

	Applicable to:	Standard	The Council's discretion shall be limited to the following matters:
a.	All non-residential activities with <u>parking areas</u> and/or <u>loading areas</u> used during hours of darkness (except <u>hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> or <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> ).	Lighting of <u>parking areas</u> and <u>loading areas</u> shall be maintained at a minimum level of two lux, with high uniformity, during the hours of operation.	Rule 7.4.4.8 - Illumination of parking areas and loading areas
b.	Any <u>urban activity</u> , except: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. <u>residential activities, hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> or <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>, containing less than three car <u>parking spaces</u>; or</li> <li>ii. <u>sites</u> where <u>access</u> is obtained from an unsealed <u>road</u>; or</li> <li>iii. <u>temporary activities and buildings</u>.</li> </ul>	The surface of all car <u>parking areas</u> , <u>loading areas</u> , and associated <u>access</u> areas shall be formed, sealed and drained and car <u>parking spaces</u> permanently marked.	Rule 7.4.4.9 - Surface of parking areas and loading areas

## 7.5 Appendices

Table 7.5.2.1 – Minimum numbers of cycle parks required

	Activity	Visitor cycle parks (within the <u>Central City</u> visitor spaces can be used by students)	Staff/ residents/ students cycle parks
n.	<del>GUEST VISITOR ACCOMMODATION</del> except for <u>hosted visitor</u>	1 space/ 20 bedrooms (Outside the <u>Central City</u> )	1 space/ 5 <u>FTE</u> staff (Outside the <u>Central City</u> )

	Activity	Visitor cycle parks (within the <a href="#">Central City</a> visitor spaces can be used by students)	Staff/ residents/ students cycle parks
	<a href="#">accommodation in a residential unit</a> or <a href="#">unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a>	1 space/ 20 beds (except 1 space/ 30 bedrooms for <a href="#">Hotels</a> ) (within the <a href="#">Central City</a> )	1 space/ 80 beds (except 1 space/ 80 bedrooms for <a href="#">Hotels</a> ) (within the <a href="#">Central City</a> )

Table 7.5.3.1 – Minimum numbers of loading spaces required

	Activity	Number of <a href="#">heavy vehicle</a> bays to be provided	Number of 99 percentile vehicle bays to be provided
<a href="#">GUEST VISITOR ACCOMMODATION:</a>			
k.	<a href="#">Hotels</a>	1 bay/ 100 bedrooms (for the first 300 bedrooms, nil thereafter)	1 bay /50 bedrooms
l.	Other <a href="#">guest visitor accommodation</a> , if not specified above	1 bay/ 100 units or 100 bedrooms, whichever is the greater (for the first 200 units or 200 nil thereafter)	1 bay/50 units or 50 bedrooms, whichever is the greater

#### Appendix 7.5.7 – Access design and gradient

- a. All [vehicle access](#) to and within a [site](#) shall be in accordance with the standards set out in Table 7.5.7.1 below. For the purposes of Table 7.5.7.1 [hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit](#) for up to six guests; or [unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit](#) for up to 60 days per year in a residential zone; or [visitor accommodation](#) up to ten guests in a rural zone shall comply with the standards for [residential activities](#).
- b. Any [vehicle accesses](#) longer than 50 metres and with a formed width less than 5.5 metres wide shall provide passing opportunities (with a minimum width of 5.5 metres) at least every 50 metres, with the first being at the [site boundary](#).

(...)



Chapter 8 Subdivision, Development and Earthworks

8.6 Activity standards

8.6.1 Minimum net site area and dimension

Table 1. Minimum net site area – residential zones

	Zone	Minimum <u>net site area</u>	Additional standards
p.	Residential <del>Guest</del> <u>Visitor</u> accommodation	a. Kilmarnock, 197 Lincoln Road, 15 Sioux Avenue - 200m <sup>2</sup>  b. 456 Papanui Road - 330m <sup>2</sup>  c. 14 Henry Wigram Drive and 110 Marshlands Road - 450m <sup>2</sup>	

## Chapter 9 Natural and Cultural Heritage

### 9.3 Historic heritage

#### Appendix 9.3.7.4 - Heritage item and heritage setting exemptions from zone and transport rules

(...)

(...)				
Chapter 14 Residential	Residential Suburban Zone and Residential Suburban Density Transition Zone	14.4.1.1 P15 ii	Bed and breakfast	Residential coherence
(...)				
Chapter 14 Residential	Residential Medium Density Zone	14.5.1.1 P6 a.ii	Bed and breakfast	Residential coherence
(...)				
Chapter 14 Residential	Residential Banks Peninsula Zone	14.8.1.1 P7 a.ii	Bed and breakfast	Residential coherence
(...)				
Chapter 14 Residential	Residential Hills Zone	14.7.1.1 P10 a.ii	Bed and breakfast	Residential coherence
(...)				
Chapter 14 Residential	Residential Large Lot Zone	14.9.1.1 P7 a.ii	Bed and breakfast	Residential coherence
(...)				
Chapter 14 Residential	Residential Small Settlement Zone	14.10.1.1 P6 a.ii	Bed and breakfast	Residential coherence
(...)				



Chapter 12 Papakāinga/Kāinga Nohoanga Zone

12.4 Rules – Maori Land

12.4.1 Activity status tables – Maori land

12.4.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

Activity		Activity specific standards
P1	Marae complexes, including wharenui, wharekai, manuhiri noho ( <u>visitor accommodation</u> or <u>guest accommodation</u> <del>with or without a tariff</del> ) and associated <u>accessory buildings</u>	Nil
(...)		
<del>P15</del>	<del>Farm stay</del>	<del>Nil</del>
(...)		
<u>P21</u>	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	<p>a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></p> <p>b. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the <u>site</u> where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests.</u></p>
<u>P22</u>	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	<p>a. <u>The total number of nights per year that guests may be accommodated on any one <u>site</u> is 180.</u></p> <p>b. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the <u>site</u> where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests.</u></p> <p>d. <u>The owners and residents of <u>adjoining sites</u> must be provided with up-to-date contact information for the owner or manager of the unit.</u></p> <p><u>The owner of the unit must provide the <u>Council</u> with a copy of the listing and any unique identification number, keep records of the number of nights booked per year and the dates used for <u>visitor accommodation</u> and provide those records to the <u>Council</u> on an annual basis.</u></p>
<u>P23</u>	<u>Visitor accommodation accessory to farming</u>	<p>a. <u>At least one permanent resident of the same <u>site</u> or an <u>adjoining site</u> must be in residence for the duration of the stay.</u></p> <p>b. <u>No more than six guests total shall be accommodated on the same <u>site</u> at the same time.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Visitors must be accommodated in a <u>residential unit</u> or minor <u>residential unit</u>, other existing <u>building</u>, campground consisting of tents, or no more than three vehicles.</u></p>

Activity	Activity specific standards
<p>P24 <u>Visitor accommodation accessory to a conservation activity or rural tourism activity including tramping huts and camping in tents in association with walking and cycling tracks</u></p>	<p>a. <u>No more than three cabins, tramping huts or other buildings used for this activity may co-locate on any site.</u></p> <p>b. <u>No more than ten cabins, huts or other buildings can be located accessory to any one conservation activity or rural tourism activity within Christchurch District.</u></p> <p>c. <u>The maximum GFA of any building and area of impervious surfaces used in association with that building shall be 100m<sup>2</sup>.</u></p> <p>d. <u>Campgrounds accommodating tents must be set back at least 20m from the bank of any water body.</u></p> <p>a. <u>The maximum number of guests that can be accommodated on any one site in association with a conservation activity is six.</u></p>

#### 12.4.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
D4	<p><u>Visitor accommodation that:</u></p> <p>a. <u>is not associated with a marae complex, hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, or visitor accommodation accessory to farming, a conservation activity or a rural tourism activity; or</u></p> <p>b. <u>does not meet the activity specific standards in P21-P24.</u></p>

## Chapter 13 Specific Purpose Zones

### 13.3 Specific Purpose (Airport) Zone

#### 13.3.4 Rules – Specific Purpose (Airport) Zone

##### 13.3.4.1 Activity status tables

##### 13.3.4.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

Activity	Activity Specific Standards
(...)	
P6 <u>Guest Visitor accommodation</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. Shall be confined to the Development Precinct set out in <a href="#">Appendix 13.3.8.1</a>.</li> <li>b. Shall be located outside the 65 Ldn/95 SEL dBA contour</li> <li>c. All amenities and sleeping areas are fully enclosed and comply with the 'Indoor design sound levels' for 'relaxing and sleeping' as specified in <a href="#">Rule 6.1.7.2.2</a>.</li> </ul>

#### 13.3.7.6 Activities within the Specific Purpose (Airport) Zone

(...)

- d. The zone is subject to considerable noise intrusion from airport operations and the movement of aircraft both during the day and night. Any residential activity, guest visitor accommodation or preschool facility must be outside the 65 Ldn/95 SEL dBA noise contour.

### 13.11 Specific Purpose (Flat Land Recovery) Zone

#### 13.11.2 Objectives and Policies

#### 13.11.4 Rules — Specific Purpose (Flat Land Recovery) Zone

##### 13.11.4.1 Activity status tables

##### 13.11.4.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

Activity	Activity specific standards
(...)	
P12 <del>Bed and breakfast within a residential unit</del> <u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> on a <u>site</u> that was privately owned as at 12 October 2015.	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <del>There shall be:</del> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. <del>a maximum of six guests accommodated at any one time;</del></li> <li>ii. <del>at least one owner of the residential unit residing permanently on the site;</del> and</li> <li>iii. <del>no guest given accommodation for more than 90 consecutive days.</del> </li> </ul> </li> <li>a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>b. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></li> </ul>

Activity	Activity specific standards
	<p>c. <u>Guest shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p> <p><del>b.</del> d. <u>The activity shall meet the following built form standards of the Residential Suburban Zone: Rules 14.4.2.1, 14.4.2.3, 14.4.2.4, 14.4.2.5, 14.4.2.6, 14.4.2.7, 14.4.2.8, 14.4.2.9 and 14.4.2.11, except as provided for in c. below.</u></p> <p><del>e.</del> e. <u>In the case of the Specific Purpose (Flat Land Recovery) Zone at Brooklands (Planning Maps 2 and 6), the activity shall meet the following built form standards of the Residential Small Settlement Zone: Rules 14.10.2.1, 14.10.2.2, 14.10.2.3, 14.10.2.4, 14.10.2.5, 14.10.2.6 and 14.10.2.8.</u></p>

13.11.4.1.2 Controlled activities

~~There are no controlled activities~~

C1	<p><u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit on a site that was privately owned as at 12 October 2015:</u></p> <p>a. <u>for a total per site of 60 nights or fewer per year;</u></p> <p>b. <u>for a maximum of six guests at any one time;</u></p> <p>c. <u>where check-in and check-out times are not between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am; and</u></p> <p>d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p>	<p>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></p> <p>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></p> <p>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></p> <p>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></p> <p>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></p> <p>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></p> <p>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></p>
----	--	---

13.11.4.1.4 Discretionary activities

D9	<p><u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit on a site that was privately owned as at 12 October 2015 that does not comply with activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c) in Rule 13.11.4.1.1 P12 and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.</u></p>	
D10	<p><u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit on a site that was privately owned as at 12 October 2015 not subject to Rule C1 for a maximum of:</u></p> <p>a. <u>twelve guests per site at any one time; and</u></p> <p>b. <u>a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</u></p>	

### 13.11.4.1.5 Non-complying activities

NC4	<p><u>Visitor accommodation that is:</u></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>not hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, or unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit;</u></li> <li>b. <u>hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in Rule 14.4.1.4 D9;</u></li> <li>c. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in Rule 14.4.1.4 D10(a);</u></li> <li>d. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one site.</u></li> </ul>
-----	---

### 13.13 Specific Purpose (Nga Hau e Wha) Zone

#### 13.13.4 Rules — Specific Purpose (Ngā Hau e Whā) Zone

##### 13.13.4.1 Activity status tables

##### 13.13.4.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

Activity		Activity Specific Standards
P1	Marae complexes, including wharenuī, wharekai, manuhiri noho (guest accommodation with or without tariff) and associated <u>accessory buildings</u> .	Nil



Chapter 14 Residential

14.2 Objectives and Policies

14.2.1 Objective - Housing supply

14.2.1.1 Policy - Housing distribution and density

Table 14.2.1.1a

Residential <del>Guest Visitor</del> Accommodation Zone	Comprises a number of sites situated in residential locations that were previously either zoned or scheduled for <del>guest visitor</del> accommodation purposes in earlier district plans and continue to be used for <del>guest visitor</del> accommodation. The zone provides for the ongoing operation, intensification or redevelopment of these established activities, compatible with the character and amenity of adjoining residential zones.
---	---

14.2.1.2 Policy - Establishment of new medium density residential areas

(...)

- a. Provide for medium density residential development in defined arterial locations identified as suitable for larger scale community facilities and ~~guest visitor~~ accommodation.

14.2.6 Objective - Non-residential activities

- a. Residential activities remain the dominant activity in residential zones, whilst also recognising the need to:
  - i. provide for community facilities and home occupations which by their nature and character typically need to be located in residential zones; ~~and~~
  - ii. provide for visitor accommodation in accordance with Objective 14.2.9 and Policies 14.2.9.1 to 14.2.9.4; and
  - iii. restrict other non-residential activities, unless the activity has a strategic or operational need to locate within a residential zone, ~~or is existing guest accommodation on defined sites.~~

Note: this objective and its subsequent policies do not apply to brownfield sites.

14.2.6.3 Policy - Existing non-residential activities

- a. Enable existing non-residential activities to continue and support their redevelopment and expansion provided they do not:
  - i. have a significant adverse effect on the character and amenity of residential zones; or
  - ii. undermine the potential for residential development consistent with the zone descriptions in Table 14.2.1.1a.

Advice Notes: Note:

1. This policy also implements Objective 14.2.4.
2. Policy 14.2.6.3 does not apply to visitor accommodation. Refer to Objective 14.2.9 and Policies 14.2.9.1 to 14.2.9.4 for the relevant provisions.

#### 14.2.6.4 Policy - Other non-residential activities

- a. Restrict the establishment of other non-residential activities, especially those of a commercial or industrial nature, unless the activity has a strategic or operational need to locate within a residential zone, and the effects of such activities on the character and amenity of residential zones are insignificant.

Advice Note: Policy 14.2.6.4 does not apply to visitor accommodation. Refer to Objective 14.2.9 and Policies 14.2.9.1 to 14.2.9.4 for the relevant provisions.

#### ~~14.2.6.7 Policy – Guest accommodation~~

- ~~a. In the Accommodation and Community Facilities Overlay, provide for guest accommodation within defined arterial locations that:
  - ~~i. are within walking distance of the Central City and suburban commercial centres;~~
  - ~~ii. front onto core public transport routes; and~~
  - ~~iii. are not dominated by residential development.~~~~
- ~~b. In the Residential Guest Accommodation Zone, provide for the ongoing operation, intensification or redevelopment of existing guest accommodation sites, compatible with the character and amenity of adjoining residential zones.~~

#### 14.2.9 Objective – Visitor Accommodation in Residential Zones

- a. Visitors and other persons requiring short-term lodging have a broad choice of types and locations that meet their needs where:
  - i. this is compatible with the function and level of amenity intended for the zone; and
  - ii. the use of any residential unit is still predominantly a residential activity, and the residential character of the site is retained.
- b. Visitor accommodation is only established in residential zones (except for the Residential Visitor Accommodation Zone and Accommodation and Community Facilities Overlay) where it of a scale and character that is consistent with meeting objectives for:
  - i. a sufficient supply of housing, including affordable housing, with a choice of locations including an increase in the number of households within the Four Avenues;
  - ii. a revitalised Central City with a wide diversity and concentration of activities that enhance its role as the primary focus of the City and region;
  - iii. enabling the revitalising of commercial centres;
  - iv. protecting strategic infrastructure from incompatible activities and avoiding reverse sensitivity effects on them; and
  - v. high quality residential neighbourhoods with a high level of amenity.
- c. Visitor accommodation in the Residential Visitor Accommodation Zone and Accommodation and Community Facilities Overlay can establish, operate, intensify and/or redevelop in a way that is compatible with the character and amenity of adjoining residential, rural or open space zones; and does not expand the activity outside of the existing zone or overlay area into other non-commercial zones.

#### 14.2.9.1 Policy – Visitor Accommodation in a Residential Unit

- a. Permit visitor accommodation in a residential unit where:
  - i. at least one permanent resident of the site is in residence for the duration of the stay;
  - ii. the number of visitors, including additional guests not spending the night, is comparable to use by a residential household; and

- iii. disturbance to neighbours is minimal.
- b. Manage visitor accommodation in a residential unit while the permanent resident(s) are not in residence to minimise adverse effects on the residential character, coherence and amenity of the site and its immediate surroundings including through:
  - i. restrictions on the scale, duration and frequency of use to ensure that the residential unit is still predominantly used for a residential activity; and
  - ii. management of operations to minimise disturbance of neighbours, including providing contact and site management information to guests and neighbours.
- c. Avoid visitor accommodation in a residential unit at a scale, duration and/or frequency that cannot be managed in a way that minimises adverse effects on commercial centres or the residential character, coherence and amenity of the site and its immediate surroundings; or that would be likely to give rise to reverse sensitivity effects on strategic infrastructure.

#### 14.2.9.2 Policy – Existing Visitor Accommodation

- a. In the Residential Visitor Accommodation Zone, provide for the ongoing operation, intensification or redevelopment of existing visitor accommodation sites, compatible with the character and amenity of adjoining residential, rural and open space zones.

#### 14.2.9.3 Policy – Visitor Accommodation in Defined Arterial Locations

- a. In the Accommodation and Community Facilities Overlay, provide for visitor accommodation within defined arterial locations that:
  - i. are within walking distance of the Central City and suburban commercial centres;
  - ii. front onto core public transport routes; and
  - iii. are not dominated by residential development.

#### 14.2.9.4 Policy – Other Visitor Accommodation in Residential Zones

- a. Visitor accommodation not provided for in Policies 14.2.9.1-14.2.9.3 shall not locate in residential zones, except where the activity provides for the ongoing use of a heritage item consistent with Policy 9.3.2.2.3 and adverse amenity impacts on residential neighbours can also be minimised.

#### 14.3 How to interpret and apply the rules

- a. The rules that apply to activities in the various residential zones are contained in the activity status tables (including activity specific standards) and built form standards in:
  - i. Rule 14.4 – Residential Suburban Zone and Residential Suburban Density Transition Zone;
  - ii. Rule 14.5 – Residential Medium Density Zone;
  - iii. Rule 14.6 – Residential Central City Zone;
  - iv. Rule 14.7 – Residential Hills Zone;
  - v. Rule 14.8 – Residential Banks Peninsula Zone;
  - vi. Rule 14.9 – Residential Large Lot Zone;
  - vii. Rule 14.10 – Residential Small Settlement Zone;
  - viii. Rule 14.11 – Residential **Guest Visitor** Accommodation Zone;
  - ix. Rule 14.12 – Residential New Neighbourhood Zone;
  - x. Rule 14.15 - Rules - Matters of control and discretion.

- b. In relation to the Residential ~~Guest Visitor~~ Accommodation Zone, each site has been grouped into Group A, B and C sites in Appendix 14.16.11, depending on its residential context. For any activities (other than ~~guest visitor accommodation~~ (P1) and permitted activities on the YMCA site (P3)), the applicable rules for permitted and restricted discretionary activities are those that apply in the zone listed for that site in Appendix 14.16.11, including activity specific standards, built form standards and matters of discretion.

(...)

#### 14.4 Rules - Residential Suburban Zone and Residential Suburban Density Transition Zone

##### 14.4.1 Activity status tables

###### 14.4.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
P15	Bed and breakfast	<del>b. There shall be:</del> <del>i. a maximum of six guests accommodated at any one time;</del> <del>ii. at least one owner of the residential unit residing permanently on site; and</del> <del>iii. no guest given accommodation for more than 90 consecutive days.</del>
P29	Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit	a. A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time. b. Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am. c. Guest shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.
P30	Visitor accommodation in a heritage item	a. A permanent resident or manager/supervisor for the property shall be in residence on the site for the duration of any visitors' stays. b. A maximum of ten guests shall be accommodated at any one time. c. Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am. d. Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.

###### 14.4.1.2 Controlled activities

		The matters over which Council reserves its control:
(...)		
C7	Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit: a. for a total per site of 60 nights or fewer per year; b. for a maximum of six guests at any one time; c. where check-in and check-out times are not between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am; and	a. Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information b. Record keeping and provision of information to the Council c. Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities d. Management of solid waste disposal e. Maintenance of the exterior of the property

	d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u>	f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u> g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u>
C8	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item that does not comply with activity specific standard (a) in Rule 14.4.1.1 P30.</u>	a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u> b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u> c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u> d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u> e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u> f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u> g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u>

#### 14.4.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
D2	a. Activities that do not meet one or more of the activity specific standards in Rule 14.4.1.1 for: i. P1 <u>Residential activity</u> ; ii. P8 Conversion of an <u>elderly person's housing unit</u> into a <u>residential unit</u> ; iii. P14 Care of non-resident children in a <u>residential unit</u> ; <del>iv. P15 <u>Bed and breakfast</u>;</del> <del>iv. P20 <u>Places of assembly</u>; or</del> <del>v. Storage of more than one <u>heavy vehicle</u> for P16-P19 and P21.</del>
(...)	
D7	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that does not comply with activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c) in Rule 14.4.1.1 P29 and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.</u>
D8	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit not subject to Rule 14.4.1.2 C7 for a maximum of:</u> a. <u>twelve guests per site at any one time; and</u> b. <u>a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</u>
D9	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item not subject to Rule 14.4.1.1 P30 for a maximum of twenty guests per site that does not comply with activity specific standards (b), (c) or (d) in Rule 14.4.1.1 P30.</u>

#### 14.4.1.5 Non-complying activities

(...)	
NC8	<u>Visitor accommodation that is:</u> a. <u>not hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit or visitor accommodation in a heritage item;</u>

	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>b. <u>hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.4.1.4 D7</a>;</li> <li>c. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.4.1.4 D8</a>;</li> <li>d. <u>visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.4.1.4 D9</a>; or</li> <li>e. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one <u>site</u>.</li> </ul>
--	---

#### 14.4.3 Area-specific rules - Residential Suburban Zone and Residential Suburban Density Transition Zone

##### 14.4.3.1 Area-specific activities

##### 14.4.3.1.1 Area-specific permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
P2	<u>Guest accommodation</u> <u>Visitor accommodation</u> in the Accommodation and Community Facilities Overlay including <u>ancillary office, meeting and conference facilities, fitness facilities and provision of goods and services primarily for the convenience of guests.</u>	<p>Nil</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>The maximum size of all ancillary activities shall not exceed 25% of the GFA of all buildings on the same site.</u></li> <li>b. <u>No individual type of ancillary activity shall be more than 250m<sup>2</sup> GLFA.</u></li> </ul>

##### 14.4.3.1.3 Area-specific restricted discretionary activities

RD19	<u>Accommodation and Community Facilities Overlay</u>	<u>Ancillary activities to visitor accommodation listed in Rule 14.4.3.1.1 P2 that do not comply with any one or more of the activity specific standards in Rule 14.4.3.1.1 P2.</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>Scale of activity – Rule 14.15.5</u></li> <li>b. <u>Hours of operation – Rule 14.15.21</u></li> <li>c. <u>Traffic generation and access safety – Rule 14.15.6</u></li> </ul>
------	---	---	---

##### 14.4.3.2 Area-specific built form standards

##### 14.4.3.2.12 Maximum continuous building length

(...)

Applicable to	Standard
i. <u>Guest Visitor accommodation;</u>	A. New <u>buildings</u> : 15 metres
ii. <u>Community facility;</u>	B. Additions to an existing <u>building</u> : 10 metres

<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>iii. <b>Preschool;</b></li> <li>iv. <b>Education facility;</b></li> <li>v. <b>Health care facility;</b></li> <li>vi. <b>Place of assembly; and</b></li> <li>vii. <b>Veterinary care facility.</b></li> </ul>	
---	--

14.4.3.2.14 Front Entrances and Facades  
(...)

Applicable to	Standard
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. <b>Guest Visitor accommodation;</b></li> <li>ii. <b>Community facility;</b></li> <li>iii. <b>Preschool;</b></li> <li>iv. <b>Education facility;</b></li> <li>v. <b>Health care facility;</b></li> <li>vi. <b>Place of assembly; and</b></li> <li>vii. <b>Veterinary care facility.</b></li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>A. Pedestrian access shall be directly from the road frontage.</li> <li>B. A minimum of 30% glazing on the road frontage on ground floor.</li> <li>C. A minimum of 20% glazing on the road frontage on elevations above ground level.</li> </ul>

14.5 Rules - Residential Medium Density Zone

14.5.1 Activity status tables

14.5.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
P6	<del>Bed and breakfast</del>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <del>There shall be:</del> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. <del>a maximum of six guests accommodated at any one time;</del></li> <li>ii. <del>at least one owner of the residential unit residing permanently on site; and</del></li> <li>iii. <del>no guest given accommodation for more than 90 consecutive days.</del></li> </ul> </li> </ul>
P22	<b>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</b>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>b. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></li> <li>c. <u>Guest shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>
P23	<b>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</b>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>A permanent resident or manager/supervisor for the property shall be in residence on the site for the duration of any visitors' stays.</u></li> <li>b. <u>A maximum of ten guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>c. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>b. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul> </li> </ul>

14.5.1.2 Controlled activities

		The matters over which Council reserves its control:
(...)		
C6	<p><u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit:</u></p> <p>a. <u>for a total per site of 60 nights or fewer per year;</u></p> <p>b. <u>for a maximum of six guests at any one time;</u></p> <p>c. <u>where check-in and check-out times are not between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am; and</u></p> <p>d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p>	<p>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></p> <p>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></p> <p>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></p> <p>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></p> <p>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></p> <p>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></p> <p>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></p>
C7	<p><u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item that does not comply with activity specific standard (a) in Rule 14.5.1.1 P23.</u></p>	<p>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></p> <p>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></p> <p>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></p> <p>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></p> <p>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></p> <p>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></p> <p>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></p>

#### 14.5.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
D2	<p>a. Activities that do not meet one or more of the activity specific standards in Rule 14.5.1.1 for:</p> <p>i. P1 <u>Residential activity;</u></p> <p>ii. P3 Conversion of an <u>elderly person's housing unit</u> into a <u>residential unit;</u></p> <p>iii. P5 Care of non-resident children in a <u>residential unit;</u></p> <p><del>iv. P6 <u>Bed and breakfast;</u></del></p> <p><del>iv.</del> <del>v.</del> P11 <u>Place of assembly;</u> or</p> <p><del>v.</del> <del>vi.</del> Storage of more than one <u>heavy vehicle</u> for activities for P7-P10 and P14.</p> <p><del>vi.</del> <del>vii.</del> P19 The use of the existing control tower <u>building</u> (Lot 357 DP 447629) and hangars 4 and 5 (Lot 315 DP 434068).</p>
(...)	
D7	<p><u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that does not comply with activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c) in Rule 14.5.1.1 P22 and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.</u></p>
D8	<p><u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit not subject to Rule 14.5.1.2 C6 for a maximum of:</u></p> <p>a. <u>twelve guests per site at any one time; and</u></p> <p>b. <u>a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</u></p>



D9	<a href="#">Visitor accommodation</a> in a <a href="#">heritage item</a> not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.5.1.1 P23</a> for a maximum of twenty guests per <a href="#">site</a> that does not comply with activity specific standards (b), (c) or (d) in <a href="#">Rule 14.5.1.1 P23</a> .
----	--

#### 14.5.1.5 Non-complying activities

	Activity
(...)	
NC4	<p><a href="#">Visitor accommodation</a> that is:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li><a href="#">not hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit or visitor accommodation in a heritage item;</a></li> <li><a href="#">hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.5.1.4 D7</a>;</a></li> <li><a href="#">unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.5.1.4 D8</a>;</a></li> <li><a href="#">visitor accommodation in a heritage item that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.5.1.4 D9</a>; or</a></li> <li><a href="#">unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one site.</a></li> </ol>

#### 14.5.3 Area-specific rules - Residential Medium Density Zone

##### 14.5.3.1 Area-specific activities

##### 14.5.3.1.1 Area-specific permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
P2	<p><del>Guest accommodation</del>  <a href="#">Visitor accommodation</a> in the Accommodation and Community Facilities Overlay including <a href="#">ancillary office</a>, meeting and conference facilities, fitness facilities and provision of goods and services primarily for the convenience of guests.</p>	<p><del>Nil</del></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>The maximum size of all <a href="#">ancillary</a> activities shall not exceed 25% of the <a href="#">GFA</a> of all <a href="#">buildings</a> on the same <a href="#">site</a>.</li> <li>No individual types of <a href="#">ancillary</a> activity shall be more than <a href="#">250m<sup>2</sup> GLFA</a>.</li> </ol>

##### 14.5.3.1.3 Area-specific restricted discretionary activities

RD13	<p><b><a href="#">Ancillary activities to visitor accommodation listed in <a href="#">Rule 14.5.3.1.1 P2</a> in the Accommodation and Community Facilities Overlay that do not meet one or more of the activity specific standards in <a href="#">Rule 14.5.3.1.1 P2</a>.</a></b></p>	<ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li><b>Scale of activity - <a href="#">Rule 14.15.5</a></b></li> <li><b>Hours of operation - <a href="#">Rule 14.15.21</a></b></li> <li><b>Traffic generation and access safety - <a href="#">Rule 14.15.6</a></b></li> </ol>
------	---	--

### 14.5.3.2 Area-specific built form standards

#### 14.5.3.2.4 Maximum continuous building length

(...)

	Standard
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. <b>Guest Visitor accommodation;</b> and a</li> <li>ii. <b>Community facility;</b></li> <li>iii. <b>Preschool;</b></li> <li>iv. <b>Education facility;</b></li> <li>v. <b>Health care facility;</b></li> <li>vi. <b>Place of assembly;</b> and</li> <li>vii. <b>Veterinary care facility.</b></li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>A. For new buildings the maximum length of a building elevation shall not exceed 15 metres (see Figure 10)</li> <li>B. For existing buildings any addition to the building elevation shall not exceed a length of 10 metres</li> </ul>

#### 14.5.3.2.5 Front entrances and facades

(...)

Buildings associated with:	Standard
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. <b>Guest Visitor accommodation;</b> and a</li> <li>ii. <b>Community facility;</b></li> <li>iii. <b>Preschool;</b></li> <li>iv. <b>Education facility;</b></li> <li>v. <b>Health care facility;</b></li> <li>vi. <b>Place of assembly;</b> and</li> <li>vii. <b>Veterinary care facility.</b></li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>A. Pedestrian access shall be directly from the road frontage.</li> <li>B. A minimum of 30% glazing on the road frontage on ground floor.</li> <li>C. A minimum of 20% glazing on the road frontage on elevations above ground level.</li> </ul>

### 14.6 Rules - Residential Central City Zone

#### 14.6.1 Activity status tables

##### 14.6.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
P2	Bed and breakfast	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <del>There shall be:</del></li> <li>i. a maximum of six guests accommodated at any one time;</li> <li>ii. at least one owner of the residential unit residing permanently on site; and</li> <li>iii. no guest given accommodation for more than 90 consecutive days.</li> </ul>
(...)		
P9	Any education facility, spiritual activity, health care facility, <u>or</u> preschool (other than as provided for in Rule 14.6.1.1 P7), <u>or</u> <b>guest accommodation</b> up to	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. Only those persons who reside permanently on the site can be employed in the activity.</li> <li>b. The maximum total number of hours the site shall be open to visitors, clients or deliveries for the activity, <del>other than for guest accommodation activities,</del> shall be 40 hours per week, and shall be limited to between the hours of: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. 07:00 – 21:00 Monday to Friday, and</li> <li>ii. 08:00 – 19:00 Saturday, Sunday, and public holidays.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

	40m2 gross floor area (including any area of outdoor storage used for activities other than residential activities), except those activities provided for in Rule 14.6.1.1 P10.	<p>c. The maximum number of vehicle movements per site, other than for residential activities, shall be:</p> <p>i. heavy vehicles: 2 per week; and</p> <p>ii. other vehicles: 16 per day.</p>
P10	Any community facility, preschool (other than as provided for in Rule 14.6.1.1 P7), or <u>guest visitor accommodation</u> on Fitzgerald Avenue, or Bealey Avenue between Durham Street North and Madras Street.	<p>a. The maximum total number of hours the site shall be open to visitors, clients or deliveries for the activity shall be 40 hours per week, and shall be limited to between the hours of:</p> <p>i. 07:00 – 21:00 Monday to Friday, and</p> <p>ii. 08:00 – 19:00 Saturday, Sunday, and public holidays.</p> <p>iii. Except that these hours of operation in Rule 14.6.1.1 P10 a.i. and a.ii. do not apply to <u>guest visitor accommodation</u>.</p> <p>b. The maximum number of vehicle movements per site per day for any activity, other than for residential activities, shall be 200 and:</p> <p>i. Vehicles, other than heavy vehicles associated with any residential activity on the site, shall be included in determining the number of vehicle movements to and from any site. Vehicles parking on the street or on any other site, in order that their occupants can visit the site, shall also be included in determining the number of vehicles trips to and from any site.</p>
P14	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	<p>a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></p> <p>b. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Guest shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p>
P15	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u>	<p>a. <u>A permanent resident or manager/supervisor for the property shall be in residence on the site for the duration of any visitors' stays.</u></p> <p>b. <u>A maximum of ten guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></p> <p>d. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p>

#### 14.6.1.2 Controlled activities

		The matters over which Council reserves its control:
C1	<p><u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit:</u></p> <p>a. <u>for a total per site of 60 nights or fewer per year;</u></p> <p>b. <u>for a maximum of six guests at any one time;</u></p>	<p>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></p> <p>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></p>

	<p>c. <u>where check-in and check-out times are not between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am; and</u></p> <p>d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p>	<p>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></p> <p>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></p> <p>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></p> <p>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></p> <p>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></p>
C2	<p><u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item that does not comply with activity specific standard (a) in Rule 14.6.1.1 P15.</u></p>	<p>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></p> <p>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></p> <p>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></p> <p>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></p> <p>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></p> <p>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></p> <p>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></p>

#### 14.6.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
(...)	
D2	<p>a. Any education facility, spiritual activity, health care facility, <u>or preschool</u> (other than as provided for in Rule 14.6.1.1 P7 and Rule 14.6.1.4 D3), <del>or guest accommodation</del>, that is over 40m<sup>2</sup> but less than 201m<sup>2</sup> in gross floor area (including any area of outdoor storage used for activities), other than:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. on a site with frontage to Fitzgerald Avenue, or Bealey Avenue between Durham Street North and Madras Streets; or</li> <li>ii. on a site with frontage to a local road,</li> </ol> <p>b. provided that the following standards are met:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li><del>i. For <u>guest accommodation</u>, at least one employee must reside permanently on the site.</del></li> <li><del>ii.</del> <u>iii.</u> The maximum total number of hours the site shall be open to visitors, clients or deliveries for the activity shall be 40 hours per week, and shall be limited to between the hours of: <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>A. 07:00 - 21:00 Monday to Friday, and</li> <li>B. 08:00 - 19:00 Saturday, Sunday and public holidays.</li> <li><del>C. Except that these hours of operation in Rule 14.6.1.4 D2 b.ii. do not apply to <u>guest accommodation</u></del></li> </ol> </li> </ol>
D3	<p>a. Activities that do not meet any one or more of the activity specific standards in <a href="#">Rule 14.6.1.1</a> for:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li><del>i. P1 <u>Residential activity</u></del></li> <li><del>ii. P2 <u>Bed and breakfast</u></del></li> <li><del>iii. P7 Care of non-resident children in a <u>residential unit</u></del></li> </ol>
(...)	

D5	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that does not comply with activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c) in <a href="#">Rule 14.6.1.1 P14</a> and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.
D6	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.6.1.2 C1</a> for a maximum of: a. <u>twelve guests per site</u> at any one time; and b. <u>a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</u>
D7	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u> not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.6.1.1 P15</a> for a maximum of twenty guests per <u>site</u> that does not comply with activity specific standards (b), (c) or (d) in <a href="#">Rule 14.6.1.1 P15</a> .

#### 14.6.1.5 Non-complying activities

	Activity
NC4	Any activity listed in Rule 14.6.1.1 P10 that does not meet any one or more of the activity standards in Rule 14.6.1.1 P10 a.-b.
NC5	Any education facility, spiritual activity, health care facility, <u>or preschool</u> (other than as provided for in Rule 14.6.1.1 P7 and Rule 14.6.1.4 D3), <del>or guest accommodation</del> with a gross floor area over 40m <sup>2</sup> (including any area of outdoor storage) with frontage to a local road.
NC6	Any education facility, spiritual activity, health care facility, <u>or preschool</u> (other than as provided for in Rule 14.6.1.1 P7 and Rule 14.6.1.4 D3), <del>or guest accommodation</del> , that exceeds a gross floor area of 200m <sup>2</sup> (including any area of outdoor storage) other than on a site with frontage to Fitzgerald Avenue, or Bealey Avenue between Durham Street North and Madras Streets.
(...)	
NC8	<u>Visitor accommodation</u> (other than as provided for in Rule <a href="#">14.6.1.1 P10</a> and <a href="#">14.6.1.5 NC4</a> ): that is: a. <u>not hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit or visitor accommodation in a heritage item;</u> b. <u>hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.6.1.4 D5</a>;</u> c. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.6.1.4 D6</a>;</u> d. <u>visitor accommodation in a heritage item that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.6.1.4 D7</a>; or</u> e. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one site.</u>

#### 14.7 Rules - Residential Hills Zone

##### 14.7.1 Activity status tables

##### 14.7.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
P10	<del>Bed and breakfast</del>	<del>a. There shall be:  i. a maximum of six guests accommodated at any one time;  ii. at least one owner of the residential unit residing permanently on site; and  iii. no guest given accommodation for more than 90 consecutive days.</del>

P22	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>b. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></li> <li>c. <u>Guest shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>
P23	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>A permanent resident or manager/supervisor for the property shall be in residence on the site for the duration of any visitors' stays.</u></li> <li>b. <u>A maximum of ten guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>c. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></li> <li>d. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>

#### 14.7.1.2 Controlled activities

		The matters over which Council reserves its control:
(...)		
C5	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit:</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>for a total per site of 60 nights or fewer per year;</u></li> <li>b. <u>for a maximum of six guests at any one time;</u></li> <li>c. <u>where check-in and check-out times are not between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am; and</u></li> <li>d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></li> <li>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></li> <li>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></li> <li>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></li> <li>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></li> <li>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></li> <li>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></li> </ul>
C6	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item that does not comply with activity specific standard (a) in Rule 14.7.1.1 P23.</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></li> <li>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></li> <li>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></li> <li>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></li> <li>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></li> <li>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></li> <li>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></li> </ul>

#### 14.7.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
D2	a. Activities that do not meet one or more of the activity specific standards in Rule 14.7.1.1 for: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. P1 Residential activity;</li> <li>ii. P5 Conversion of family flat into a residential unit;</li> <li>iii. P9 Care of non-resident children in a residential unit; or</li> <li>iv. <del>P10 Bed and breakfast;</del> or</li> <li>iv. <del>Storage of more than one heavy vehicle for P11-P16.</del></li> </ul>
(...)	
D6	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that does not comply with activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c) in Rule 14.7.1.1 P22 and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.
D7	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> not subject to Rule 14.7.1.2 C5 for a maximum of: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. twelve guests per site at any one time; and</li> <li>b. a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</li> </ul>
D8	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u> not subject to Rule 14.7.1.1 P23 for a maximum of twenty guests per site that does not comply with activity specific standards (b), (c) or (d) in Rule 14.7.1.1 P23.

#### 14.7.1.5 Non-complying activities

	Activity
(...)	
N3	<u>Visitor accommodation</u> that is: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>not hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit or visitor accommodation in a heritage item;</u></li> <li>b. <u>hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in Rule 14.7.1.4 D6;</li> <li>c. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in Rule 14.7.1.4 D7;</li> <li>d. <u>visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in Rule 14.7.1.4 D8; or</li> <li>e. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one site.</li> </ul>

### 14.8 Rules - Residential Banks Peninsula Zone

#### 14.8.1 Activity status tables

##### 14.8.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
P7	<del>Bed and breakfast</del>	<p>a. There shall be:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. <del>a maximum of six guests accommodated at any one time;</del></li> <li>ii. <del>at least one owner of the residential unit residing permanently on site; and</del></li> <li>iii. <del>no guest given accommodation for more than 90 consecutive days.</del></li> </ul> <p>Advice note:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. For <del>bed and breakfast</del> within the Lyttelton Port Influences Overlay refer to area specific Rule 14.8.3.</li> </ol>

P22	<a href="#">Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a>	<p>a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></p> <p>b. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Guest shall not hold functions or events on the <a href="#">site</a> where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p> <p>Advice note: 1. For <a href="#">hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a> within the Lyttelton Port Influences Overlay refer to area specific <a href="#">Rule 14.8.3.</a></p>
P23	<a href="#">Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</a>	<p>a. <u>A permanent resident or manager/supervisor for the property shall be in residence on the <a href="#">site</a> for the duration of any visitors' stays.</u></p> <p>b. <u>A maximum of ten guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></p> <p>d. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the <a href="#">site</a> where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p> <p>Advice note: 1. For <a href="#">visitor accommodation in a heritage item</a> within the Lyttelton Port Influences Overlay refer to area specific <a href="#">Rule 14.8.3.</a></p>

14.8.1.2 Controlled activities

		The matters over which Council reserves its control:
(...)		
C2	<p><a href="#">Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit:</a></p> <p>a. <u>for a total per <a href="#">site</a> of 60 nights or fewer per year;</u></p> <p>b. <u>for a maximum of six guests at any one time;</u></p> <p>c. <u>where check-in and check-out times are not between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am; and</u></p> <p>d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the <a href="#">site</a> where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p> <p>Advice note: 1. For <a href="#">unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a> within the Lyttelton Port Influences Overlay refer to area specific <a href="#">Rule 14.8.3.</a></p>	<p>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></p> <p>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></p> <p>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></p> <p>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></p> <p>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></p> <p>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></p> <p>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></p>



C3	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item that does not comply with activity specific standard (a) in Rule 14.8.1.1 P23.</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></li> <li>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></li> <li>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></li> <li>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></li> <li>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></li> <li>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></li> <li>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></li> </ul>
----	--	--

#### 14.8.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
D2	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. Activities that do not meet one or more of the activity specific standards in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.1.1</a> for: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. P1 <a href="#">Residential activity</a>;</li> <li>ii. P4 Conversion of an <a href="#">elderly person's housing unit</a> into a <a href="#">residential unit</a>;</li> <li>iii. P6 Care of non-resident children in a <a href="#">residential unit</a>;</li> <li>iv. <del>P7 <a href="#">Bed and breakfast</a></del>; or</li> <li>iv. v. Storage of more than one <a href="#">heavy vehicle</a> for activities for P8-P12.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
(...)	
D9	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that does not comply with activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c) in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.1.1</a> P22 and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.</u>
D10	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.8.1.2</a> C2 for a maximum of:</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>twelve guests per site at any one time; and</u></li> <li>b. <u>a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</u></li> </ul>
D11	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.8.1.1</a> P23 for a maximum of twenty guests per site that does not comply with activity specific standards (b), (c) or (d) in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.1.1</a> P23.</u>

#### 14.8.1.5 Non-complying activities

	Activity
N3	<p><u>Visitor accommodation that is:</u></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.8.1.4</a> D4, <a href="#">hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a>, <a href="#">unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a> or <a href="#">visitor accommodation in a heritage item</a>;</u></li> <li>b. <u><a href="#">hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.1.4</a> D9;</u></li> <li>c. <u><a href="#">unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.1.4</a> D10;</u></li> <li>d. <u><a href="#">visitor accommodation in a heritage item</a> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.1.4</a> D11; or</u></li> <li>e. <u><a href="#">unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a> that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one site.</u></li> </ul>

14.8.3 Area-specific rules - Residential Banks Peninsula Zone

14.8.3.1 Area-specific activities

14.8.3.1.1 Area-specific permitted activities

	Activity/area	Area specific standards
P1.	Extension to an existing <a href="#">habitable space</a> or the erection of a new <a href="#">habitable space</a> associated with an existing <a href="#">residential unit</a> in the Lyttelton Port Influences Overlay where the combined <a href="#">gross floor area of the habitable space</a> does not exceed 40m <sup>2</sup> within a 10 year continuous period	a. Compliance with Rule <a href="#">14.8.3.2.1</a> .
P2.	Replacement for an existing <a href="#">residential unit</a> in the Lyttelton Port Influences Overlay where the combined <a href="#">gross floor area of the habitable space</a> does not exceed the combined <a href="#">gross floor area of the habitable spaces</a> contained in the previous <a href="#">residential unit</a> by more than 40m <sup>2</sup> within a 10 year continuous period	a. Compliance with Rule <a href="#">14.8.3.2.1</a> .
P3.	<a href="#">Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. Compliance with Rule <a href="#">14.8.3.2.1</a>.</li> <li>b. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>c. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></li> <li>d. <u>Guest shall not hold functions or events on the <a href="#">site</a> where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>
P4.	<a href="#">Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</a>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. Compliance with Rule <a href="#">14.8.3.2.1</a>.</li> <li>b. <u>A permanent resident or manager/supervisor for the property shall be in residence on the <a href="#">site</a> for the duration of any visitors' stays.</u></li> <li>c. <u>A maximum of ten guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>d. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></li> <li>e. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the <a href="#">site</a> where the number of additional attendees</u></li> </ul>

	Activity/area	Area specific standards
		<u>exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u>

14.8.3.1.2 Area-specific controlled activities

C1.	<p><u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit:</u></p> <p>a. <u>for a total per site of 60 nights or fewer per year;</u></p> <p>b. <u>for a maximum of six guests at any one time;</u></p> <p>c. <u>where check-in and check-out times are not between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am; and</u></p> <p>d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p>	<p>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></p> <p>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></p> <p>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></p> <p>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></p> <p>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></p> <p>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></p> <p>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></p> <p>h. <u>Managing risk of reverse sensitivity on Port activities</u></p>
C2.	<p><u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item that does not comply with activity specific standard (b) in Rule 14.8.3.1.2 P4.</u></p>	<p>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></p> <p>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></p> <p>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></p> <p>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></p> <p>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></p> <p>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></p> <p>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></p> <p>h. <u>Managing risk of reverse sensitivity on Port activities</u></p>

#### 14.8.3.1.4 Area-specific discretionary activities

D1	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that does not comply with activity specific standards (b), (c) or (d) in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.3.1.1 P3</a> and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.
D2	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.8.3.1.4 C1</a> for a maximum of: a. <u>twelve guests per site</u> at any one time; and b. <u>a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</u>
D3	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u> not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.8.3.1.1 P4</a> for a maximum of twenty guests per site that does not comply with activity specific standards (c), (d) or (e) in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.3.1.1 P4</a> .

#### 14.8.3.1.5 Area-specific non-complying activities

NC5	a. New noise <u>sensitive activities</u> in the Lyttelton Port Influences Overlay <u>except for <a href="#">14.8.3.1.1 P3</a> or <a href="#">P4</a>, <a href="#">14.3.3.1.2 C1</a> or <a href="#">C2</a>, <a href="#">14.8.3.1.4 D1</a>, <a href="#">D2</a> or <a href="#">D3</a> and <a href="#">14.8.3.1.5 NC6</a>.</u> b. Any application arising from this rule shall not be publicly notified and shall be limited notified only to Lyttelton Port Company (absent its written approval).
NC6	<u>Visitor accommodation</u> that is: a. <u>not hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit or visitor accommodation in a heritage item;</u> b. <u>hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.3.1.4 D1</a>;</u> c. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.3.1.4 D2</a>;</u> d. <u>visitor accommodation in a heritage item that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.8.3.1.4 D3</a>; or</u> e. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one site.</u>

### 14.9 Rules - Residential Large Lot Zone

#### 14.9.1 Activity status tables

##### 14.9.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
<del>P7</del>	<del>Bed and breakfast</del>	<del>a. There shall be:  i. a maximum of six guests accommodated at any one time;  ii. at least one owner of the residential unit residing permanently on site; and  iii. no guest given accommodation for more than 90 consecutive days.</del>

P23	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>b. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></li> <li>c. <u>Guest shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>
P24	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>A permanent resident or manager/supervisor for the property shall be in residence on the site for the duration of any visitors' stays.</u></li> <li>b. <u>A maximum of ten guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>c. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></li> <li>d. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>

#### 14.9.1.2 Controlled activities

		The matters over which Council reserves its control:
C1	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit:</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>for a total per site of 60 nights or fewer per year;</u></li> <li>b. <u>for a maximum of six guests at any one time;</u></li> <li>c. <u>where check-in and check-out times are not between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am; and</u></li> <li>d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></li> <li>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></li> <li>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></li> <li>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></li> <li>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></li> <li>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></li> <li>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></li> </ul>
C2	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item that does not comply with activity specific standard (a) in Rule 14.9.1.1 P24.</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></li> <li>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></li> <li>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></li> <li>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></li> <li>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></li> <li>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></li> <li>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></li> </ul>

#### 14.9.1.3 Restricted discretionary activities

(...)

RD7	<p>a. Activities and <u>buildings</u> that do not meet one or more of the activity specific standards in <a href="#">Rule 14.9.1.1</a> for:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. P5 <u>Home occupation</u></li> <li>ii. P6 Care of non-resident children within a <u>residential unit</u> in return for monetary payment to the carer; <del>and</del></li> <li>iii. <del>P7 <u>Bed and breakfast</u>.</del></li> </ul>	<p>a. As relevant to the activity specific standard that is not met:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. Scale of activity – <a href="#">Rule 14.15.5</a></li> <li>ii. Traffic generation and access safety – <a href="#">Rule 14.15.6</a></li> <li>iii. Non-residential hours of operation – <a href="#">Rule 14.15.21</a></li> </ul>
-----	---	--

#### 14.9.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
(...)	
D6	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that does not comply with activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c) in <a href="#">Rule 14.9.1.1</a> P23 and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.
D7	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.9.1.2</a> C1 for a maximum of: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>twelve guests per site</u> at any one time; and</li> <li>b. <u>a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</u></li> </ul>
D8	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u> not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.9.1.1</a> P24 for a maximum of twenty guests per <u>site</u> that does not comply with activity specific standards (b), (c) or (d) in <a href="#">Rule 14.9.1.1</a> P24.

#### 14.9.1.5 Non-complying activities

	Activity
(...)	
N3	<p><u>Visitor accommodation</u> that is:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>not hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit or visitor accommodation in a heritage item;</u></li> <li>b. <u>hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.4.1.4</a> D6;</li> <li>c. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.4.1.4</a> D7;</li> <li>d. <u>visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.4.1.4</a> D8; or</li> <li>e. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one <u>site.</u></li> </ul>

### 14.10 Rules - Residential Small Settlement Zone

#### 14.10.1 Activity status tables

##### 14.10.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
P6	Bed and breakfast	<p>a. There shall be:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. <del>a maximum of six guests accommodated at any one time;</del></li> <li>ii. <del>at least one owner of the residential unit residing permanently on site; and</del></li> </ul>

		iii. <del>no guest given accommodation for more than 90 consecutive days.</del>
P20	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>b. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></li> <li>c. <u>Guest shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>
P21	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>A permanent resident or manager/supervisor for the property shall be in residence on the site for the duration of any visitors' stays.</u></li> <li>b. <u>A maximum of ten guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></li> <li>c. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u></li> <li>d. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>

#### 14.10.1.2 Controlled activities

		The matters over which Council reserves its control:
(...)		
C2	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit:</u> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>for a total per site of 60 nights or fewer per year;</u></li> <li>b. <u>for a maximum of six guests at any one time;</u></li> <li>c. <u>where check-in and check-out times are not between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am; and</u></li> <li>d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></li> <li>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></li> <li>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></li> <li>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></li> <li>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></li> <li>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></li> <li>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></li> </ul>
C3	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item that does not comply with activity specific standard (a) in Rule 14.10.1.1 P21.</u>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></li> <li>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></li> <li>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></li> <li>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></li> <li>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></li> <li>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></li> <li>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></li> </ul>

### 14.10.1.3 Restricted discretionary activities

(...)

RD9	<p>a. Activities and <u>buildings</u> that do not meet one or more of the activity specific standards in <u>Rule 14.10.1.1</u> for:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. P4 Home occupation</li> <li>ii. P5 Care of non-resident children within a residential unit in return for monetary payment to the carer; <del>and</del></li> <li>iii. <del>P6 Bed and breakfast.</del></li> </ul> <p>b. Any application arising from this rule shall not be publicly notified but may be limited notified to affected persons.</p>	<p>a. As relevant to the activity specific standard that is not met:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. Scale of activity - <u>Rule 14.15.5</u></li> <li>ii. Traffic generation and access safety – <u>Rule 14.15.6</u></li> <li>iii. Non-residential hours of operation – <u>Rule 14.15.21</u></li> </ul>
-----	---	---

### 14.10.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
(...)	
D4	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that does not comply with activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c) in <u>Rule 14.10.1.1</u> P20 and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.
D5	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> not subject to <u>Rule 14.10.1.2</u> C2 for a maximum of: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>twelve guests per site</u> at any one time; and</li> <li>b. <u>a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</u></li> </ul>
D6	<u>Visitor accommodation</u> in a <u>heritage item</u> not subject to <u>Rule 14.10.1.1</u> P21 for a maximum of twenty guests per <u>site</u> that does not comply with activity specific standards (b), (c) or (d) in <u>Rule 14.10.1.1</u> P21.

### 14.10.1.5 Non-complying activities

	Activity
(...)	
N3	<p><u>Visitor accommodation</u> not subject to Rule 14.10.1.3 RD7 that is:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>not hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit or visitor accommodation in a heritage item;</u></li> <li>b. <u>hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in Rule 14.10.1.4 D4;</u></li> <li>c. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in Rule 14.10.1.4 D5;</u></li> <li>d. <u>visitor accommodation in a heritage item that exceeds the maximum number of guests in Rule 14.10.1.4 D6; or</u></li> <li>e. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one site.</u></li> </ul>

## 14.11 Rules - Residential ~~Guest~~ Visitor Accommodation Zone

### 14.11.1 Activity status tables

#### 14.11.1.1 Permitted activities



- a. The activities listed below are permitted activities in the Residential **Guest Visitor** Accommodation Zone if they meet the activity specific standards set out in this table, and in relation to Rule 14.11.1.1 P1 and P3 the built form standards in Rule 14.11.2.

(...)

Activity		Activity specific standards
P1	<b>Guest Visitor accommodation</b>	a. <b>Guest Visitor accommodation</b> located in the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour shall be designed and constructed to meet the indoor design sound levels contained in Appendix 14.16.4. b. Any <b>ancillary retail activity</b> (excluding food and drink for on-site consumption) shall occupy no more than 250m <sup>2</sup> , or 25% of the GFA of all <b>buildings</b> on the same <b>site</b> , whichever is the lesser.
(...)		
P3	a. On the YMCA site listed as GA18 in Appendix 14.16.11: i. <b>Recreation activities</b> , and any of the following activities which are <b>ancillary to guest visitor accommodation</b> and/or <b>recreation activities on the site</b> : A. <b>Education activities</b> ; B. <b>Health care facility</b> ; C. <b>Offices and administration facilities</b> ; D. <b>Parking areas</b> ; E. <b>Retail activity</b> ; and F. <b>Public meeting rooms and conference facilities</b> .	

#### 14.11.1.3 Restricted discretionary activities

Activity		The Council's discretion shall be limited to the following matters:
(...)		
RD2	Any activity listed in Rule 14.11.1.1 P1 that does not meet activity specific standard b.	a. Retail activity in the Residential <b>Guest Visitor</b> Accommodation Zone - Rule 14.15.38
(...)		

RD11	Buildings for an activity listed in Rule 14.11.1.1 P1 or P3 that do not meet the built form standard in Rule 14.11.2.8 - Landscaped areas and trees	a. Tree and garden planting in the Residential <del>Guest</del> <u>Visitor</u> Accommodation Zone - Rule 14.15.37
------	---	---

## 14.12 Rules - Residential New Neighbourhood Zone

### 14.12.1 Activity status table

#### 14.12.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
<del>P7</del>	<del>Bed and breakfast</del>	<del>a. There shall be: i. a maximum of six guests accommodated at any one time; ii. at least one owner of the residential unit residing permanently on site; and iii. no guest given accommodation for more than 90 consecutive days.</del>
P24	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u> b. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u> c. <u>Guest shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u>
P25	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u>	a. <u>A permanent resident or manager/supervisor for the property shall be in residence on the site for the duration of any visitors' stays.</u> b. <u>A maximum of ten guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u> c. <u>Check-in and check-out times shall not be between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am.</u> d. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u>

#### 14.12.1.2 Controlled activities

		The matters over which Council reserves its control:
(...)		
C7	a. Any activity listed in Rule 14.12.1.1 that meets all applicable built form standards in Rule 14.12.2 and is located within Area 5 in Appendix 8.10.30 East Papanui Outline Development Plan, other than the following activities: i. P5 (Home occupation);	(...)

	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>ii. P6 (Care of non-resident children);</li> <li><del>iii. P7 (Bed and breakfast);</del></li> <li>iii. <del>iv.</del> P17 (Temporary lifting or moving of earthquake damaged buildings);</li> <li>iv. <del>v.</del> P19 (Market gardens, community gardens and garden allotments); and</li> <li>v. <del>vi.</del> P21 (limited to rural productive activities, other than new buildings or additions to existing buildings, which are permitted activities in the Rural Urban Fringe Zone) – Rule 17.5.1.1).</li> </ul>	
C8	<p><u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit:</u></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>for a total per site of 60 nights or fewer per year;</u></li> <li>b. <u>for a maximum of six guests at any one time;</u></li> <li>c. <u>where check-in and check-out times are not between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am; and</u></li> <li>d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></li> </ul>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></li> <li>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></li> <li>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></li> <li>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></li> <li>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></li> <li>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></li> <li>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></li> </ul>
C9	<p><u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item that does not comply with activity specific standard (a) in Rule 14.12.1.1 P25.</u></p>	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</u></li> <li>b. <u>Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</u></li> <li>c. <u>Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</u></li> <li>d. <u>Management of solid waste disposal</u></li> <li>e. <u>Maintenance of the exterior of the property</u></li> <li>f. <u>Number and size of vehicles used by guests including large vehicles</u></li> <li>g. <u>Building access arrangements and wayfinding</u></li> </ul>

14.12.1.4 Discretionary activities

Activity
----------

(...)	
D2	a. Activities that do not meet any one or more of the activity specific standards in <a href="#">Rule 14.12.1.1</a> for: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. P1 Residential activity;</li> <li>ii. P6 Care of non-resident children in a residential unit;</li> <li>iii. <del>P7 Bed and breakfast;</del></li> <li>iii. <del>iv.</del> P12 Places of assembly; or</li> <li>iv. <del>v.</del> Storage of more than one heavy vehicle for P8-P11 and P13.</li> </ul>
(...)	
D5	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that does not comply with activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c) in <a href="#">Rule 14.12.1.1</a> P24 and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.
D6	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.12.1.2</a> C8 for a maximum of: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>twelve guests per site</u> at any one time; and</li> <li>b. <u>a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</u></li> </ul>
D7	<u>Visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u> not subject to <a href="#">Rule 14.12.1.1</a> P25 for a maximum of twenty guests per <u>site</u> that does not comply with activity specific standards (b), (c) or (d) in <a href="#">Rule 14.12.1.1</a> P25.

#### 14.12.1.5 Non-complying activities

	Activity
(...)	
N5	<u>Visitor accommodation</u> that is: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. <u>not hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit or visitor accommodation in a heritage item;</u></li> <li>b. <u>hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.12.1.4</a> D5;</li> <li>c. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.12.1.4</a> D6;</li> <li>d. <u>visitor accommodation in a heritage item</u> that exceeds the maximum number of guests in <a href="#">Rule 14.12.1.4</a> D7; or</li> <li>e. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one <u>site</u>.</li> </ul>

#### 14.15 Rules - Matters of control and discretion

##### 14.15.5 Scale of activity

(...)

- h. For Residential ~~Guest~~ Visitor Accommodation Zone sites only, the extent to which any additional bedrooms and quantum of floorspace proposed avoids adverse effects on the function and recovery of the Central City.
- i. For the Accommodation and Community Facilities Overlay area, the extent to which any additional quantum of floorspace for activities ancillary to visitor accommodation avoids adverse effects on the function and recovery of other commercial centres.

##### 14.15.37 Tree and garden planting in the Residential ~~Guest~~ Visitor Accommodation Zone

(...)

##### 14.15.38 Retail activity in the Residential ~~Guest~~ Visitor Accommodation Zone

(...)

## 14.16 Appendices

### Appendix 14.16.2

*Update the references to the "Residential Guest Accommodation Zone" in the recession plane diagrams in 14.16.2 and 14.16.2C to read "Residential Visitor Accommodation Zone" instead*

### Appendix 14.16.4 Aircraft noise exposure

(...)

(...)		
<u>Guest Visitor accommodation</u> , resort hotels, hospitals and health care facilities		
Relaxing or sleeping	65	40
Conference meeting rooms	65	40
Service activities	75	60
(...)		

### Appendix 14.16.11 Grouping of Residential Guest Visitor Accommodation Zone Sites

The following table sets out the groupings for Residential Guest Visitor Accommodation Zone sites for the purpose of determining the applicable zone rules for permitted and restricted discretionary activities (other than for guest visitor accommodation (P1) and permitted activities on the YMCA site (P3)).

The Residential Guest Visitor Accommodation Zone site locations are contained in the figures following this table.

(...)

### Residential Guest Visitor Accommodation Zone site locations

*Rename the six appendices/images from "Appendix 14.16.11 – Residential Guest Accommodation Zone Sites" to "Appendix 14.16.11 – Residential Visitor Accommodation Zone Sites"*

## Chapter 15 Commercial

### 15.2 Objectives and Policies

#### 15.2.2.1 Policy - Role of centres

Table 15.1 - Centre's role

	Role	Centre and size (where relevant)
A.	<p>Central Business District</p> <p>Principal employment and business centre for the City and wider region and to become the primary destination for a wide range and scale of activities including comparison shopping, dining and night life, entertainment activities, <u>guest visitor accommodation</u>, events, cultural activities and tourism activities.</p> <p>Provides for high density residential activity, recreation activities and community activities and community facilities (including health and social services) as well as civic and cultural venues/ facilities (including museums, art galleries).</p> <p>Serves the district's population and visitors.</p> <p>The focus for the district, sub-regional and wider transport services with a central public transport interchange, providing access to large areas of the district and the surrounding districts of Selwyn and Waimakariri.</p>	Centre: Central City
B.	<p>District Centre - Key Activity Centre</p> <p>Major retail destination for comparison and convenience shopping and a focal point for employment (including offices), community activities and community facilities (including libraries, meeting places), entertainment (including movie theatres, restaurants, bars), and <u>guest visitor accommodation</u>.</p> <p>Medium density housing is contemplated in and around the centre.</p> <p>Anchored by large retailers including department store(s) and supermarket(s).</p> <p>Accessible by a range of modes of transport, including multiple bus routes. Public transport facilities, including an interchange, may be incorporated.</p> <p>The extent of the centre:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>is the Commercial Core Zone and Commercial Retail Park Zone at Hornby, Belfast/ Northwood and Papanui/Northlands; and</li> <li>is the Commercial Core Zone in all other District centres; and</li> <li>includes community facilities within walking distance (400 metres) of the commercial zone.</li> </ol>	Centres: Riccarton, Hornby, Papanui/Northlands, Shirley/Palms, Eastgate/Linwood, Belfast/ Northwood, North Halswell (emerging) (All Key Activity Centres) Size: Greater than 30,000m <sup>2</sup>
(...)		

15.2.5 Objective - Diversity and distribution of activities in the Central City

- a. A range of **commercial activities, community activities, cultural activities, residential activities** and **guest visitor accommodation** are supported in the Central City to enhance its viability, vitality and the efficiency of resources, while encouraging activities in specific areas by:
- i. Defining the Commercial Central City Business Zone as the focus of **retail activities** and **offices** and limiting the **height of buildings** to support an intensity of **commercial activity** across the zone;
  - ii. Limiting the extent to which **retail activity** and **offices** occur outside the Commercial Central City Business Zone;
  - iii. Providing for key anchor projects within and around the Commercial Central City Business Zone;
  - iv. Encouraging entertainment and hospitality activity (including late-night trading) in defined precincts and managing the extent to which these activities (**except for visitor accommodation**) occur outside the precincts.

15.2.6 Objective - Role of the Commercial Central City Business Zone

15.2.6.1 Policy - Diversity of activities and concentration of built development

- a. Ensure the Commercial Central City Business Zone provides for the widest range of commercial activities, community activities, cultural activities, residential activities and **guest visitor accommodation** and the greatest concentration and overall scale of built development in Christchurch.

15.4 Rules - Commercial Core Zone

15.4.1 Activity status tables - Commercial Core Zone

15.4.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

		Activity Specific Standards
(...)		
P12	<b>Guest Visitor accommodation</b>	a. Any bedroom shall be designed and constructed to achieve an external to internal noise reduction of not less than 35 dB Dtr,2m,nT,w+Ctr.
(...)		

15.4.1.5 Non-complying activities

	Activity
NC1	Any residential activity or <b>guest visitor accommodation</b> that does not meet Rules 15.4.1.1 P12 activity specific standard a. or P21 activity specific standard f.

15.5 Rules - Commercial Local Zone

15.5.1 Activity status tables - Commercial Local Zone

15.5.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
(...)		
P11	<b>Guest Visitor accommodation</b>	a. Outside the Central City, any bedroom must be designed and constructed to achieve an external to internal noise reduction of not less than 30 dB Dtr,2m,nT,w +Ctr.

(...)		
-------	--	--

15.5.1.5 Non-complying activities

	Activity
NC1	Outside the Central City, any residential activity or <b>guest visitor accommodation</b> that does not meet Rules 15.5.1.1 P11a. or P19 (a)(iv).
(...)	

15.6 Rules - Commercial Banks Peninsula Zone

15.6.1 Activity status tables - Commercial Banks Peninsula Zone

15.6.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
(...)		
P18	<b>Guest Visitor accommodation</b> outside the Lyttelton Port Influences Overlay Area defined on the planning maps	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. In Akaroa: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. <b>Guest Visitor accommodation</b> shall be located above ground floor level or to the rear of a commercial activity on Beach Road, between Rue Jolie and Bruce Terrace, except for a pedestrian entrance/ ground floor lobby/ reception area.</li> </ul> </li> <li>b. In Lyttelton: <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. Any habitable space shall be designed and constructed to achieve an external to internal noise reduction of not less than 25 dB Dtr,2m,nT,w+Ctr.</li> <li>ii. Any bedroom shall be designed and constructed to achieve an external to internal noise reduction of not less than 30 dB dB Dtr,2m,nT,w+Ctr.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
(...)		

15.9 Rules - Commercial Mixed Use Zone

15.9.1 Activity status tables - Commercial Mixed Use Zone

15.9.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
(...)		
P26	<b>Guest Visitor accommodation</b> including ancillary meeting and conference facilities	Nil
(...)		

15.10 Rules - Commercial Central City Business Zone

15.10.1 Activity status tables - Commercial Central City Business Zone

15.10.1.1 Permitted activities



		Activity Specific Standards
(...)		
P14	Guest Visitor accommodation	<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. The activity shall not be located at ground floor level within 10 metres of the boundary of a road (excluding access ways and service lanes), except for pedestrian entranceways or reception areas, which may be located at ground floor level.</li> <li>b. Activity specific standard a. shall not apply to the Former Christchurch Teachers College building at 25 Peterborough Street</li> </ul>
(...)		

15.11 Rules - Commercial Central City Mixed Use Zone

15.11.1 Activity status tables - Commercial Central City Mixed Use Zone

15.11.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
P17	Guest Visitor accommodation	Nil
(...)		

15.12 Rules - Commercial Central City (South Frame) Mixed Use Zone

15.12.1 Activity status tables - Commercial Central City (South Frame) Mixed Use Zone

15.12.1.1 Permitted activities

		Activity Specific Standards
(...)		
P14	Guest Visitor accommodation	Nil
(...)		

Chapter 16 Industrial

16.4.3 Area specific rules – Industrial General Zone (Waterloo Park)

16.4.3.1 Area specific activities – Industrial General Zone (Waterloo Park)

16.4.3.1.1 Area specific permitted activities

- a. The activities listed below are permitted activities in the Industrial General Zone (Waterloo Park) if they meet the activity specific standards set out in this table and the built form standards in [Rule 16.4.3.2](#).

Activity		Activity specific standards
P1	Activities listed in Rule <a href="#">16.4.1.1</a> P1-P21	<p>a. Development shall comply with:</p> <p>i. All of the <a href="#">key structuring elements</a> on the Waterloo Park Outline Development Plan (<a href="#">Appendix 16.8.2</a>), being:</p> <p>A. Indicative location of new roads</p> <p>B. Indicative stormwater management area</p> <p>C. Indicative other open space</p> <p>ii. Built form standards in <a href="#">Rule 16.4.3.2</a>, and <a href="#">Rule 16.4.2</a> unless specified otherwise in <a href="#">Rule 16.4.3.2</a>.</p>
P2	<a href="#">Residential activity</a> outside the 50 dB $L_{dn}$ Air Noise Contour line defined on the planning maps.	<p>a. Any bedroom must be designed and constructed to achieve an external to internal noise reduction of not less than 35 dB <math>D_{tr,2m,nl,w} + C_{tr}</math>.</p> <p>b. Any <a href="#">residential activity</a> shall have a minimum <a href="#">net floor area</a> (including toilets and bathrooms but excluding lobby and/or reception area, <a href="#">parking area</a>, <a href="#">garage</a> and <a href="#">balconies</a>) per unit of:</p> <p>A. Studio 35m<sup>2</sup></p> <p>B. 1 bedroom 45m<sup>2</sup></p> <p>C. 2 bedroom 60m<sup>2</sup></p> <p>D. 3 or more bedrooms 90m<sup>2</sup></p> <p>c. Each <a href="#">residential unit</a> shall have:</p> <p>i. an <a href="#">outdoor service space</a> of 3m<sup>2</sup> and a <a href="#">waste management area</a> of 2m<sup>2</sup> per unit, each with a minimum dimension of 1.5 metres in either a private or communal area;</p> <p>ii. a single, indoor storage space of 4m<sup>3</sup> with a minimum dimension of 1 metre; and</p> <p>iii. space designated for waste management, whether private or communal, which shall not be located between the <a href="#">road boundary</a> and any <a href="#">building</a>, and shall be screened from <a href="#">adjoining sites</a>, <a href="#">roads</a>, and <a href="#">adjoining outdoor living spaces</a> by screening from the floor level of the</p>

Activity		Activity specific standards																
		<p><u>waste management area</u> to a height of 1.5 metres.</p> <p>d. Each <u>residential unit</u> shall have an <u>outdoor living space</u> with a minimum area and dimension as set out in the following table, located immediately outside and <u>accessible</u> from an internal <u>living area</u> of the <u>residential unit</u>.</p> <table border="1"> <thead> <tr> <th></th> <th>Type</th> <th>Area</th> <th>Dimension</th> </tr> </thead> <tbody> <tr> <td>i.</td> <td>Studio, 1 bedroom</td> <td>6m<sup>2</sup></td> <td>1.5 metres</td> </tr> <tr> <td>ii.</td> <td>2 or 3 bedroom</td> <td>10m<sup>2</sup></td> <td>1.5 metres</td> </tr> <tr> <td>iii.</td> <td>3 or more bedrooms</td> <td>15m<sup>2</sup></td> <td>1.5 metres</td> </tr> </tbody> </table>		Type	Area	Dimension	i.	Studio, 1 bedroom	6m <sup>2</sup>	1.5 metres	ii.	2 or 3 bedroom	10m <sup>2</sup>	1.5 metres	iii.	3 or more bedrooms	15m <sup>2</sup>	1.5 metres
	Type	Area	Dimension															
i.	Studio, 1 bedroom	6m <sup>2</sup>	1.5 metres															
ii.	2 or 3 bedroom	10m <sup>2</sup>	1.5 metres															
iii.	3 or more bedrooms	15m <sup>2</sup>	1.5 metres															
P6	<p><u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u> outside the 50 dB<sub>L<sub>dn</sub></sub> Air Noise Contour line defined on the planning maps</p>	<p>a. A maximum of six guests shall be <u>accommodated at any one time in a residential unit</u>.</p> <p>b. Check-in and check-out times shall not be <u>between the hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am</u>.</p> <p>c. Guests shall not hold functions or events on <u>the site</u> where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</p>																

#### 16.4.3.1.2 Area specific controlled activities

	Matters of control
<p><b>C1. Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</b> outside the 50 dB<sub>L<sub>dn</sub></sub> Air Noise Contour line defined on the planning maps:</p> <p>a. <u>for a total per site of 60 nights or fewer per year;</u></p> <p>b. <u>for a maximum of six guests at any one time;</u></p> <p>c. <u>where check-in and check-out times are not between the</u></p>	<p><b>a. Provision of information for neighbours and guests, including contact information, parking restrictions, and, where appropriate, hazards information</b></p> <p><b>b. Record keeping and provision of information to the Council</b></p> <p><b>c. Management of outdoor entertainment and recreation facilities</b></p> <p><b>d. Management of solid waste disposal</b></p> <p><b>e. Maintenance of the exterior of the property</b></p> <p><b>f. Number and size of vehicles accommodated including large vehicles</b></p> <p><b>g. Building access arrangements and wayfinding</b></p>

<p><u>hours of 22:00pm to 06:00am;</u>  <u>and</u>  d. <u>where guests do not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests staying overnight.</u></p>	
---	--

16.4.3.1.4 Area specific discretionary activities

<u>D2</u>	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that does not comply with activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c) in Rule 16.4.6.1.1 P6 and that does not exceed twelve guests at any one time.</u>
<u>D3</u>	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit not subject to Rule 16.4.6.1.2 C1 for a maximum of:</u> a. <u>twelve guests per site at any one time; and</u> b. <u>a total of 61-180 nights per year on any one site.</u>

16.4.3.1.5 Area specific non-complying activities

<u>NC3</u>	<u>Visitor accommodation that is:</u> a. <u>not hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit, or unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit;</u> b. <u>hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in Rule 16.4.6.1.4 D2;</u> c. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds the maximum number of guests in Rule 16.4.6.1.4 D3;</u> d. <u>unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit that exceeds 180 nights per year on any one site.</u>
------------	---

16.6.6 Area-specific rules - Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue)

16.6.6.1 Area-specific activities - Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue)

16.6.6.1.1 Area-specific permitted activities

P2	<u>guest Visitor accommodation</u>	a. No more than 200 bedrooms shall be provided in the zone. b. <u>guest Visitor accommodation</u> shall be designed and constructed to comply with the indoor design sound levels contained in Rule 6.1.7.2.1(a)(i)(B). The requirement of Rule 6.1.7.2.1(a)(i)(B) for road traffic noise shall also apply in respect of noise from industrial activity within the zone at the noise levels permitted under Rule 6.1.5.2.1, Table 1.
----	------------------------------------	---

		c. <del>guest</del> <b>Visitor accommodation</b> shall be limited to the areas defined on the Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue) Outline Development Plan ( <a href="#">Appendix 16.8.15</a> ) as “Guest Accommodation restricted to this area”.
--	--	--

### 16.6.6.2 Area-specific built form standards — Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue)

#### 16.6.6.2.1 Maximum height for buildings

- a. The maximum **height** of any **building** shall be as follows:

	Applicable to:	Standard
iii.	<b>Buildings</b> for <del>guest visitor</del> <b>accommodation</b> in the area defined on the Outline Development Plan in <a href="#">Appendix 16.8.15</a> as “Guest Accommodation restricted to this area (20m height limit)”	20 metres

- b. Any application arising from this rule shall not be publicly notified.

#### 16.6.6.2.3 Sunlight and outlook at boundary with residential properties and ~~guest visitor~~ **accommodation** within the zone

- a. Where a **site boundary** adjoins a **site** used for **residential activity** or ~~guest visitor~~ **accommodation** within the zone, no part of any **building** shall project beyond a **building** envelope contained by a recession plane measured from any point 2.3 metres above the **site** internal **boundary** in accordance with diagram E in [Appendix 16.8.11](#).
- b. Any application arising from this rule shall not be publicly notified.

### 16.7.3.14 Activity-specific rules - Matters of discretion - Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue)

#### 16.7.3.14.1 Outline development plan - Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue)

- a. The extent to which development is in accordance with the Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue) Outline Development Plan in [Appendix 16.8.15](#).
- b. The extent to which the location and staging of vehicular **access** points and the design of the transport network (including **road** alignment and intersection design within the Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue) Outline Development Plan in [Appendix 16.8.15](#) and connections with the wider network) may individually or cumulatively impact on residential **amenity values** and the safety, efficiency and connectivity of the transport network.
- c. The extent to which the location of ~~guest visitor~~ **accommodation** outside the areas defined on the Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue) Outline Development Plan in [Appendix 16.8.15](#) as “~~Guest-Visitor~~ Accommodation restricted to this area” reduces the opportunity for ~~guest~~ **visitor accommodation** fronting Memorial Avenue and Russley Road, having regard to the limit of 200 bedrooms within the zone.
- d. The degree to which ~~guest visitor~~ **accommodation** outside the areas defined on the Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue) Outline Development Plan in [Appendix 16.8.15](#) as “~~Guest-Visitor~~ Accommodation restricted to this area” reduces capacity or erodes the integrity and function of the zone for industrial activities.
- e. The degree to which ~~guest visitor~~ **accommodation** outside the areas defined on the Industrial Park Zone (Memorial Avenue) Outline Development Plan in [Appendix 16.8.15](#) as “~~Guest-Visitor~~ Accommodation restricted to this area” may lead to **reverse sensitivity** effects on existing and/or potential use of the land for industrial activities.

Amend Appendix 16.8.15 – Industrial Park Zone (Memorial avenue) Outline Development Plan Update Key in ODP from “~~Guest\_Visitor~~ Accommodation restricted to this area (12m height limit)”

Chapter 17 Rural

17.4 Rules - Rural Banks Peninsula Zone

17.4.1 Activity status tables - Rural Banks Peninsula Zone

17.4.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

		Activity Specific Standards
(...)		
P12	Farm stay	<del>a. Shall accommodate no more than 10 guests at any one time; and</del> <del>b. Guests may be accommodated within an existing residential unit, minor residential unit, or tramping huts or within new buildings of up to 100m<sup>2</sup> and camping grounds restricted to tents.</del>
P13	Rural tourism activity	a. Visitors shall be limited to a maximum of 100 persons per day. b. The GFA of any building and/or area of impervious surfaces used shall be limited to an area of less than 100m <sup>2</sup> . c. The area of any ancillary retail activity shall be limited to less than 25m <sup>2</sup> . <del>d. May include tramping huts and camping in tents in association with walking and cycling tracks.</del>
(...)		
P22	Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit	a. A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time. b. Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests.
P23	Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit	a. The total number of nights per year that guests may be accommodated on any one site is 180. b. A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time. c. Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests. d. The owners and residents of adjoining sites must be provided with up-to-date contact information for the owner or manager of the unit. e. The owner of the unit must provide the Council with a copy of the listing and any unique identification number, keep records of the number of nights booked per year and the dates used for visitor accommodation and provide those records to the Council on an annual basis.
P24	Visitor accommodation accessory to farming	a. At least one permanent resident of the same site or an adjoining site must be in residence for the duration of the stay. b. No more than ten guests total shall be accommodated on the same site at the same time.

		c. Visitors must be accommodated in a <a href="#">residential unit</a> or minor <a href="#">residential unit</a> , other existing <a href="#">building</a> , campground consisting of tents, or no more than three vehicles.
P25	<a href="#">Visitor accommodation accessory to a conservation activity or rural tourism activity including tramping huts and camping in tents in association with walking and cycling tracks</a>	<p>a. No more than three cabins, tramping huts or other <a href="#">buildings</a> used for this activity may co-locate on any <a href="#">site</a>.</p> <p>b. No more than ten cabins, huts or other <a href="#">buildings</a> can be located <a href="#">accessory</a> to any one <a href="#">conservation activity</a> or <a href="#">rural tourism activity</a> within Christchurch District.</p> <p>c. The maximum <a href="#">GFA</a> of any <a href="#">building</a> and area of <a href="#">impervious surfaces</a> used in association with that <a href="#">building</a> shall be 100m<sup>2</sup>.</p> <p>d. Campgrounds accommodating tents must be set back at least 20m from the bank of any <a href="#">water body</a>.</p> <p>e. The maximum number of guests that can be accommodated on any one <a href="#">site</a> in association with a <a href="#">conservation activity</a> is ten.</p>

#### 17.4.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
D1	<a href="#">Guest accommodation</a> , other than farm stays provided for by Rule 17.4.1.1 P12
D1	<p><a href="#">Visitor accommodation</a> that:</p> <p>a. is not <a href="#">hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a>, <a href="#">unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a>, or <a href="#">visitor accommodation accessory to farming</a>, a <a href="#">conservation activity</a> or a <a href="#">rural tourism activity</a>.</p> <p>b. does not meet the activity specific standards in <a href="#">Rule 17.4.1.1 P22-P25</a></p>
(...)	

### 17.5 Rules - Rural Urban Fringe Zone

#### 17.5.1 Activity status tables - Rural Urban Fringe Zone

##### 17.5.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

		Activity Specific Standards
P11	Farm stay	<p>a. <del>Shall accommodate no more than 10 farm stay guests at one time; and</del></p> <p>b. <del>Guests may be accommodated within an existing residential unit or minor residential unit;</del></p> <p>c. <del>Except that where located within the 50dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour:</del></p> <p style="margin-left: 20px;"><del>i. The maximum number of farm stay guests accommodated at one time shall not exceed four; and</del></p> <p style="margin-left: 20px;"><del>ii. Guests shall only be accommodated in an existing residential unit.</del></p>
(...)		
P20	<a href="#">Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a>	a. No more than six guests total may be accommodated at the same time. No more than four guests may be accommodated at the same time within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours.

		<p>b. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the <a href="#">site</a> where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours, guests shall only be accommodated in a <a href="#">building</a> which is not a vehicle, trailer, tent, marquee, shipping container, caravan or boat.</u></p>
P21	<a href="#">Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</a>	<p>a. <u>The total number of nights per year that guests may be accommodated on any one <a href="#">site</a> is 180.</u></p> <p>b. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time. No more than four guests may be accommodated at the same time within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the <a href="#">site</a> where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests.</u></p> <p>d. <u>Within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours, guests shall only be accommodated in a <a href="#">building</a> which is not a vehicle, trailer, tent, marquee, shipping container, caravan or boat.</u></p> <p>e. <u>The owners and residents of <a href="#">adjoining sites</a> must be provided with up-to-date contact information for the owner or manager of the unit.</u></p> <p>f. <u>The owner of the unit must provide the <a href="#">Council</a> with a copy of the listing and any unique identification number, keep records of the number of nights booked per year and the dates used for <a href="#">visitor accommodation</a> and provide those records to the <a href="#">Council</a> on an annual basis.</u></p>
P22	<a href="#">Visitor accommodation accessory to farming</a>	<p>a. <u>At least one permanent resident of the same <a href="#">site</a> or an <a href="#">adjoining site</a> must be in residence for the duration of the stay.</u></p> <p>b. <u>No more than ten guests total may be accommodated on the same site at the same time. No more than four guests may be accommodated at the same time within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Visitors must be accommodated in a <a href="#">residential unit</a>, minor <a href="#">residential unit</a> or other existing <a href="#">building</a> (excluding any vehicle, trailer, tent, marquee, shipping container, caravan or boat or any <a href="#">family flat</a>). Visitors may only be accommodated in campgrounds consisting of tents or no more than three heavy vehicles in parts of the zone that are not within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour, the 50dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours.</u></p>
P23	<a href="#">Visitor accommodation accessory to a conservation activity or</a>	<p>a. <u>No more than three cabins, tramping huts or other <a href="#">buildings</a> used for this activity may co-locate on any site.</u></p>



	<p><a href="#">rural tourism activity</a> including tramping huts and camping in tents in association with walking and cycling tracks</p>	<p>b. <a href="#">No more than ten cabins, huts or other buildings</a> can be located <a href="#">accessory</a> to any one <a href="#">conservation activity</a> or <a href="#">rural tourism activity</a> within Christchurch District.</p> <p>c. The maximum <a href="#">GFA</a> of any <a href="#">building</a> and area of <a href="#">impervious surfaces</a> used in association with a <a href="#">building</a> shall be 100m<sup>2</sup>.</p> <p>d. Campgrounds accommodating tents must be set back at least 20m from the bank of any <a href="#">water body</a>.</p> <p>e. The maximum number of guests that can be accommodated on any one site in association with a <a href="#">conservation activity</a> is ten. <a href="#">No more than four guests</a> in association with a <a href="#">conservation activity</a> may be accommodated at the same time within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours.</p> <p>f. <a href="#">Visitor accommodation</a> within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours must be within <a href="#">buildings</a> (excluding any vehicle, trailer, tent, marquee, shipping container, caravan or boat or any <a href="#">family flat</a>)..</p>
--	---	--

#### 17.5.1.3 Restricted discretionary activities

	Activity	The Council's discretion shall be limited to the following matters:
(...)		
RD7	<p>a. On Pt Lot 50 DP 875, Lot 2 DP12585, Pt Lot 1 DP12585 and Lot 1 DP15308 (corner Marshlands Road and Prestons Road) any of the following activities:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. <a href="#">Guest Visitor accommodation</a></li> <li>ii. Community facility including health care facility, place of assembly, and preschool but excluding any other education activities.</li> <li>iii. Other than those provided for under Rule 17.5.1.1 P13 and 17.5.1.1 P19.</li> </ul> <p>b. Any application arising from this rule shall not be publicly notified.</p>	<p>a. Scale of activity - Rule 17.11.2.1</p>

#### 17.5.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
D1	<a href="#">Guest accommodation</a> , other than any activity provided for by Rules 17.5.1.1 P11 and P17 or Rule 17.5.1.3 RD7.
D1	<a href="#">Visitor accommodation</a> that does not meet the activity specific standards in <a href="#">Rule 17.5.1.1 P20-P23</a> except as specified in <a href="#">Rule 17.5.1.5 NC5</a>
(...)	

#### 17.5.1.5 Non-complying activities

- a. The activities listed below are non-complying activities.

	Activity
NC5	<p>a. Any other <u>sensitive activities</u> located within the 50dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour, including:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. any <u>residential unit</u> on a <u>site</u> less than 4ha;</li> <li>ii. any activity listed in Rule <u>17.5.1.1 P7</u> that does not meet activity specific standard d.; and</li> <li>iii. any activity listed in Rule <u>17.5.1.1 P11 P20</u> that does not meet activity specific standards (a) or (c); and</li> <li>iv. any activity listed in Rule <u>17.5.1.1 P21</u> that does not meet activity specific standards (a), (b) or (c); and</li> <li>v. any activity listed in Rule <u>17.5.1.1 P22</u> that does not meet activity specific standards (b) or (c).</li> <li>vi. any activity listed in Rule <u>17.15.1.1. P23</u> that does not meet activity specific standards (e) or (f).</li> </ul>

## 17.6 Rules - Rural Waimakariri Zone

### 17.6.1 Activity status tables - Rural Waimakariri Zone

#### 17.6.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

		Activity Specific Standards
(...)		
P12	Farm stay	<p><del>a. Shall accommodate no more than 6 farm stay guests at one time; and</del></p> <p><del>b. Guests may be accommodated within an existing residential unit or minor residential unit;</del></p> <p><del>c. Except that where located within the 50dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour:</del></p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li><del>i. The maximum number of farm stay guests accommodated at one time shall not exceed four; and</del></li> <li><del>ii. Guests shall only be accommodated in an existing residential unit.</del></li> </ul>
(...)		
P18	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	<p>a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time. No more than four guests may be accommodated at the same time within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours.</u></p> <p>b. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours, guests shall only be accommodated in a <u>building</u> (excluding any vehicle, trailer, tent, marquee, shipping container, caravan or boat).</u></p>
P19	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	<p>a. <u>The total number of nights per year that guests may be accommodated on any one site is 180.</u></p> <p>b. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time. No more than four guests may be accommodated at the</u></p>

		<p>same time within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours.</p> <p>c. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests.</u></p> <p>d. <u>The owners and residents of adjoining sites must be provided with up-to-date contact information for the owner or manager of the unit.</u></p> <p>e. <u>The owner of the unit must provide the Council with a copy of the listing and any unique identification number, keep records of the number of nights booked per year and the dates used for visitor accommodation and provide those records to the Council on an annual basis.</u></p> <p>f. <u>Within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours, guests shall only be accommodated in a building (excluding any vehicle, trailer, tent, marquee, shipping container, caravan or boat).</u></p>
P20	<u>Visitor accommodation accessory to farming</u>	<p>a. <u>At least one permanent resident of the same site or an adjoining site must be in residence for the duration of the stay.</u></p> <p>b. <u>No more than six guests total may be accommodated on the same site at the same time. No more than four guests may be accommodated at the same time within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Visitors must be accommodated in a residential unit or minor residential unit, or other existing building (excluding any vehicle, trailer, tent, marquee, shipping container, caravan or boat and any family flat). Visitors may only be accommodated in campgrounds consisting of tents or no more than three heavy vehicles in parts of the zone that are not within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour, the 50dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours.</u></p>
P21	<u>Visitor accommodation accessory to a conservation activity or rural tourism activity including tramping huts and camping in tents in association with walking and cycling tracks</u>	<p>a. <u>No more than three cabins, tramping huts or other buildings used for this activity may co-locate on any site.</u></p> <p>b. <u>No more than ten cabins, huts or other buildings can be located accessory to any one conservation activity or rural tourism activity within Christchurch District.</u></p> <p>c. <u>The maximum GFA of any building and area of impervious surfaces used in association with a building shall be 100m<sup>2</sup>.</u></p> <p>d. <u>Campgrounds accommodating tents must be set back at least 20m from the bank of any water body.</u></p> <p>e. <u>The maximum number of guests that can be accommodated on any one site in association with a conservation activity is ten. No more than four guests in association with a conservation activity may be accommodated at the same time within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours.</u></p>

		f. <u>Visitor accommodation</u> within the 50 dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50 dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour or any more restrictive air noise or engine testing contours must be within <u>buildings</u> (excluding any vehicle, trailer, tent, marquee, shipping container, caravan or boat).
--	--	---

#### 17.6.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
D1	<u>Guest accommodation</u> , other than any activity provided for by Rule 17.6.1.1 P12.
D1	<u>Visitor accommodation</u> that does not meet the activity specific standards in P18-P21 except as specified in NC6.
(...)	

#### 17.6.1.5 Non-complying activities

NC6	<p>a. Any <u>other sensitive activities</u> located within the 50dB Ldn Air Noise Contour or the 50dB Ldn Engine Testing Contour, including:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. any <u>residential unit</u> on a <u>site</u> less than 20ha;</li> <li>ii. any activity listed in Rule <u>17.6.1.1 P12 P18</u> that does not meet activity specific standards <u>b, e. or d.; and</u></li> <li>iii. any activity listed in Rule <u>17.6.1.1 P8</u> that does not meet activity specific standard <u>d-;</u></li> <li>iv. <u>any activity listed in Rule 17.6.1.1 P18 that does not meet activity specific standards a. or c; and</u></li> <li>v. <u>any activity listed in Rule 17.6.1.1 P19 that does not meet activity specific standards a., b. or f; and</u></li> <li>vi. <u>any activity listed in Rule 17.6.1.1 P20 that does not meet activity specific standards b. or c.</u></li> <li>vii. <u>any activity listed in Rule 17.6.1.1 P21 that does not meet activity specific standards b., e. or f.</u></li> </ul>
-----	--

### 17.7 Rules - Rural Port Hills Zone

#### 17.7.1 Activity status tables - Rural Port Hills Zone

##### 17.7.1.1 Permitted activities

(...)

		Activity Specific Standards
(...)		
P11	Farm stay	<p><del>a. Shall accommodate no more than six farm stay guests at one time; and</del></p> <p><del>b. Guests may be accommodated within an existing residential unit or minor residential unit;</del></p>

(...)		
P17	<u>Hosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	<p>a. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></p> <p>b. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests.</u></p>
P18	<u>Unhosted visitor accommodation in a residential unit</u>	<p>a. <u>The total number of nights per year that guests may be accommodated on any one site is 180.</u></p> <p>b. <u>A maximum of six guests shall be accommodated at any one time.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Guests shall not hold functions or events on the site where the number of additional attendees exceed the number of paying guests.</u></p> <p>d. <u>The owners and residents of adjoining sites must be provided with up-to-date contact information for the owner or manager of the unit.</u></p> <p>e. <u>The owner of the unit must provide the Council with a copy of the listing and any unique identification number, keep records of the number of nights booked per year and the dates used for visitor accommodation and provide those records to the Council on an annual basis.</u></p>
P19	<u>Visitor accommodation accessory to farming</u>	<p>a. <u>At least one permanent resident of the same site or an adjoining site must be in residence for the duration of the stay.</u></p> <p>b. <u>No more than six guests total may be accommodated on the same site at the same time.</u></p> <p>c. <u>Visitors must be accommodated in a residential unit or minor residential unit, other existing building, campground consisting of tents or no more than three heavy vehicles.</u></p>
P20	<u>Visitor accommodation accessory to a conservation activity or rural tourism activity including tramping huts and camping in tents in association with walking and cycling tracks</u>	<p>a. <u>No more than three cabins, tramping huts or other buildings used for this activity may co-locate on any site.</u></p> <p>b. <u>No more than ten cabins, huts or other buildings can be located accessory to any one conservation activity or rural tourism activity within Christchurch District.</u></p> <p>c. <u>The maximum GFA of any building and area of impervious surfaces used in association with that building shall be 100m<sup>2</sup>.</u></p> <p>d. <u>Campgrounds accommodating tents must be set back at least 20m from the bank of any water body.</u></p> <p>e. <u>The maximum number of guests that can be accommodated on any one site in association with a conservation activity is six.</u></p>

#### 17.7.1.4 Discretionary activities

	Activity
D1	<u>Guest accommodation, other than any activity provided for by Rule 17.7.1.1 P11.</u>
D1	<u>Visitor accommodation that does not meet the activity specific standards in P17-P20</u>
(...)	

District Plan Map legends and notations (all)

Residential ~~Guest~~ Visitor Accommodation Zone

~~RCA~~ RVA

